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Statements of Members of the Board of Directors
(In accordance to L. 3556/ 2007)

The members of the Board of Directors of FOURLIS HOLDINGS SA

1. Vassilis S. Fourlis, Chairman,
2. Dafni A. Fourlis, Vice Chairman and
3. Apostolos D. Petalas, CEO

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge:

a. The Annual Financial Statements (Consolidated and Separate) of FOURLIS HOLDINGS SA for the
period 1/1/ - 31/12/2012 which have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards provide a true and fair view of the Assets, Liabilities and Shareholders Equity
along with the Statement of Financial Position and the Statement of Comprehensive Income of
FOURLIS HOLDINGS S.A. and its subsidiaries included in the consolidation according to article 5
paragraphs 3 to 5 of L.3556/ 2007.

b. The Annual Report of Board of Directors provides a true and fair view of the information required
by paragraph 6 of article 5 of L.3556/ 2007.

Neo Psychiko, Feb 25, 2013

The Chairman The Vice Chairman The CEO

Vassilis S. Fourlis Dafni A. Fourlis Apostolos D. Petalas
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ANNUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY FOURLIS
HOLDINGS SA FOR THE PERIOD
1/1-31/12/2012
(In accordance with L. 3556/ 2007)
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS ANNUAL GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF YEAR 2013

Dear Shareholders,

Please find below, for your approval, the Annual Financial Report (Consolidated and Separate) of
FOURLIS HOLDINGS S.A. for the period 1/1 - 31/12/2012.

The Group apart from the Company FOURLIS HOLDING S.A. also includes subsidiaries over which
FOURLIS HOLDING S.A. has direct and indirect control.

1. THE GROUP - BUSINESS SEGMENTS
The FOURLIS Group which consists of the parent Company FOURLIS HOLDING S.A. along with its

subsidiaries and their subsidiaries companies is operating in the Home Furniture and Household Goods

(Retail), Sporting Goods (Retail), Fashion Activity (Retail) and Electrical Equipment (Wholesale).

The subsidiary companies and their subsidiaries that are included in the full consolidated financial

statements for 2012, grouped per Segment and countries of operation are the following:

a) Full method

Retail Trading of Home Furniture and Household Goods (IKEA Stores)
e  HOUSEMARKET SA which operates in Greece and the parent company has a direct shareholding
of 100%.

¢ H.M. HOUSEMARKET (CYPRUS) LTD which operates in Cyprus and the parent company has an
indirect shareholding of 100%.

¢ TRADE LOGISTICS S.A. which operates in Greece and the parent company has an indirect
shareholding of 100%.

e  RENTIS REAL ESTATE INVESTMENTS SA which operates in Greece and the parent company has
an indirect shareholding of 100%.

¢ HOUSE MARKET BULGARIA AD which operates in Bulgaria and the parent company has an
indirect shareholding of 100% (except of one share).

e WYLDES LTD which operates in Cyprus and the parent company has an indirect shareholding of
100%.

Retail Trading of Sporting Goods (INTERSPORT stores)
e INTERSPORT SA which operates in Greece and the parent company has a direct shareholding of
100%.

¢  INTERSPORT ATHLETICS (CYPRUS) LTD which operates in Cyprus and the parent company has
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an indirect shareholding of 100%.

e GENCO BULGARIA EOOD which operates in Bulgaria and the parent company has an indirect
shareholding of 100%.

e INTERSPORT ATLETIK MAGAZACILIK VE DIS TICARET A.S. which operates in Turkey and the

parent company has an indirect shareholding of 100% after the acquisition of the 25% minority
interest on September 2012.

¢ Retail Trading of Sporting Goods segment includes the retail sales of Sporting goods of GENCO
TRADE SRL which operates in Romania. The parent company has a direct shareholding of 41,15%
and an indirect shareholding of 58,85%.

Retail Trading of Fashion Activity (NEW LOOK stores)

The Retail Trading of Fashion Activity segment includes the retail sales of fashion activity of GENCO
TRADE SRL.

Wholesale Trading of Electrical Equipment
e  FOURLIS TRADE SA which operates in Greece and the parent company has a direct shareholding
of 100%.

e  SERVICE ONE SA which operates in Greece and the parent company has an indirect shareholding
of 99,94%.

b) Net Equity method

Affiliated Companies

The Group’s consolidated data include, the following affiliated companies:

e  SPEEDEX SA which operates in Greece in the courier services. The parent company has a direct
shareholding of 49,55%.

e VYNER LTD which operates in Cyprus and the subsidiary company WYLDES LTD has a direct
shareholding of 50%.

2. FINANCIAL DATA — IMPORTANT FACTS & FIGURES

Sales for retail trading of Home Furniture and Household Goods - IKEA decreased by 8,7% compared
with 2011, sales of the retail trading of Sporting Goods - INTERSPORT increased by 17,2% and sales
of wholesale trading of Electrical Equipment decreased by 26,4%. Despite the unfavorable market
conditions, both in Greece and in other countries where the Group operates, and economic
uncertainty, the Group's retail business gained significant market shares in a strongly declining market.
The consolidated loss before tax amounted to € 11,7 million versus € 4,1 million consolidated profit

before tax in 2011. Net losses amounted to € 11,3 million compared to € 2,3 million profits in 2011.

The retail trading of Home Furniture and Household Goods (IKEA) segment, realized sales of € 286,5

million for the whole of 2012. In Greece, the sales decreased by 17,8% compared with 2011. The
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EBITDA totaled € 18,1 million compared to € 24,4 million in 2011 and reported losses before tax € 2,0
million versus € 7,9 million profits in 2011. In 31/12/2012 seven (7) IKEA Stores were operating, five
(5) of which in Greece, one (1) in Cyprus and one (1) in Bulgaria. In November 2012, an IKEA
products Pick up Point started operating at Rhodes Island, in order to offer better services to

consumers of the region.

The retail trading of Sporting Goods (INTERSPORT) segment, realized sales of € 106,3 million. The
sportswear activity had EBITDA € 6,1 million (€ 4,3 million in 2011). The Group on 31/12/2012 has
eighty four (84) INTERSPORT Stores vs 77 at the end of 2011, from which thirty nine in Greece (39),
twenty two (22) in Romania, sixteen (16) in Turkey, four (4) in Bulgaria and three (3) in Cyprus.

The retail trading of Fashion Activity (NEW LOOK) segment began its activity in the Group in the third
quarter of 2011 in Romania and at 31/12/2012 operated seven (7) Stores. In 2012, the industry

recorded total sales of € 3,8 million versus € 1,2 million in 2011.

The segment of wholesale trading of Electrical Equipment recorded in 2012 sales € 24,1 million and

loss before tax € 2,9 million.

In Greece, the Group adjust its actions in the context formed by the macroeconomic environment. In
other countries, where the Group operates, the business plan with selective investments mainly in the
retail trading of Sporting Goods (INTERSPORT) was implemented. In 2012, the company held the
centralization of support services for Group’s companies in Greece and particularly of IT services, HR

services, financial controlling and planning, treasury and corporate social responsibility.

In an effort to present a complete and real view of the Group’s performance, we report the annual

consolidated results per Segment for fiscal year 2012 versus 2011 at the following tables.

Retail Trading of Home Furniture and Household Goods (IKEA stores):

2012 2011 2012/ 2011
Revenue 286.480 313.661 0,91
EBITDA 18.098 24.434 0,74
Profit before Tax -1.965 7.947 -

The annual results of 2011 for Retail Trading of Home Furniture and Household Goods have been

charged with preopening expenses amounted to € 4,4 million.

Retail Trading of Sporting Goods (INTERSPORT stores)

2012 2011 2012/ 2011
Revenue 106.318 90.751 1,17
EBITDA 6.147 4.260 1,44
Profit before Tax -951 -1.934 0,49

Retail Trading of Fashion Activity (NEW LOOK stores)
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2012 2011 2012/2011
Revenue 3.776 1.229 3,07
EBITDA -1.393 -622 2,23
Profit before Tax -2.007 -776 2,58

(*) The first NEW LOOK store in Romania opened on 25/8/2011.

Wholesale Trading of Electrical Equipment:

FOURLIS Group continues to represent in Greece brands with worldwide recognition (General Electirc,
Liebherr, K6 rting). The wholesaling and repair — maintenance services of electrical equipment made
by the companies FOURLIS TRADE S.A. and SERVICE ONE S.A.

Continuing operations:

2012 2011 2012/ 2011
Revenue 24.065 30.498 0,78
EBITDA -1.938 -270 7,17
Profit before Tax -2.888 -1.192 2,42

Discontinued operations:

2012 2011 2012/ 2011
Revenue - 2.216 -
EBITDA - 754 -
Profit before Tax - 653 -

The comparative data for the period 1/1 — 31/12/2011 shows separately the discontinued operations,

due to interruption of collaboration with SAMSUNG Electorinics.
Group Consolidated:

Continuing & discontinued operations:

2012 2011 2012/ 2011
Revenue 420.254 438.249 0,95
EBITDA 20.086 27.969 0,71
Profit before Tax -11.700 4.077 -
Profit/ Loss after Tax and Minority Interests -11.253 2.297 -

We note that on a consolidated basis the Group’s Total Equity (after minority interest) at December 31,

2012 amounts to € 176,9 millions versus an amount of € 187,7 millions of year end 2011.

3. Basic Financial Indicators (Consolidated)

Below please find basic Indicators for the Group Financial Structure and Performance & Efficiency

according to the consolidated financial statements for the years 2012 and 2011 respectively.
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Financial Structure Indicators:

2012 2011
Current Assets/ Total Assets 35,40% 39,49%
Total Liabilities/ Total Equity & Liabilities 61,71% 61,78%
Tgta_l _Eguity (after minority interest)/ Total Equity & 38,29% 38,24%
Liabilities
Current Assets/ Short Term Liabilities 108,17% 95,21%

Performance & Efficiency basic Indicators:

2012 2011
Operating Profit/ Revenues 0,66% 3,42%
PBT/ Total Equity (after minority interest) -6,61% 2,17%

4. Operating Performance — Important developments:

According to the resolution of Annual General Meeting of 15/6/2012 the members of the company’s

Board of Directors were re — elected for a term of five (5) years, automatically extended until the first

Annual General Meeting following the expiry of their term. The same General Meeting took a decision for

a share program. Specifically, the decision is referred to paragraph 13 of Annual Report of the Board of

Directors.

During the year 2012 the following share capital increases realised in cash:

Increase of the share capital of the subsidiary INTERSPORT ATHLETICS S.A. with the amount of
euros 1.994.039,00, by issuing 67.940 new common nominal shares with vote, with nominal price
euros 29,35 per share, according to the resolution of the General Assembly of INTERSPORT
ATHLETICS S.A. 23/8.2.2012. The share capital increase was totally covered by the shareholder
FOURLIS HOLDINGS S.A.

Increase of the share capital of the subsidiary GENCO BULGARIA EOOD with the amount of
BGN 3.900.000,00 by issuing 390.000 new common nominal shares with vote with nominal price
BGN 10,00 per share, according to the resolution of the Board of Directors of INTERSPORT
ATHLETICS S.A. 252/8.2.2012. INTERSPORT ATHLETICS SA participated in the share capital
increase according to the resolution of the Board of Directors of INTERSPORT ATHLETICS SA.

Increase of the share capital of the subsidiary RENTIS S.A. with the amount of euros 900.000,00,
by issuing 900.000 new common nominal shares with vote, with nominal price euro 1,00 per share,
according to the resolutions 16/6.4.2012, 17/14.6.2012 and 18/14.9.2012 of General Assembly of
RENTIS S.A. The share capital increase was totally covered by the shareholder, H.M.
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HOUSEMARKET (CYPRUS) LIMITED.

e Increase of the share capital of FOURLIS TRADE SA with the amount of euros 133.677,58, by the
capitalization of the contributed equity of the merged company under the name “PRIME OFFICE
AUTOMATION INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AND TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES & SYSTEMS
S.A.” by issuing 215.609 new common nominal shares with a nominal value of euro 0,62 per share.
Amount of euros 99.180,14 was credited to the account “Difference from share premium” resulting
from the merge. The merge and subsequent increase of the share capital held on 14/6/2012 by the
resolutions of the General Assembly of the merging companies and under the resolution on
2/7/2012 of Prefecture of Northern Sector of Athens.

o Increase of the share capital of GENCO TRADE SRL with the amount of RON 29.730.415,00, by
issuing 7.150 new common nominal shares with a nominal value of RON 4.158,10 per share,
according to the resolutions on 28/5/2012 and 26/11/2012 of FOURLIS HOLDINGS S.A. The share
capital increase was totally covered by the company INTERSPORT ATHLETICS S.A., according to
the resolutions on 1/6/2012, 2/7/2012 and 10/12/2012 of Board of Directors and was completed in
2012.

e Increase of the share capital of the subsidiary INTERSPORT ATLETIK MAGAZACILIK VE DIS
TICARET A.S. with the amount of TL 18.850.000,00, by issuing 18.850.000 new common nominal
shares with vote, with nominal price TL 1,00 per share, according to the resolution on 10/12/2012
of Board of Directors of INTERSPORT ATHLETICS S.A. and to the resolution on 22/12/2012 of
General Assembly of INTERSPORT ATLETIK MAGAZACILIK VE DIS TICARET A.S. Note that before
and for the purpose of exercising the option of the share holder to participate in the share capital
increase of INTERSPORT ATHLETICS SA was paid at an earlier time the amount of TL
11.525.001,00 and, following that decision to increase the share capital of INTERSPORT ATLETIK
MAGAZACILIK VE DIS TICARET A.S., was paid additional amount of TL 7.324.999,00.

¢ Increases of the share capital of the subsidiary WYLDES LTD with the amount of euros 935,00, plus
the amount of euros 9.349.065,00 as premium, by issuing 935 new common nominal shares with
vote, with nominal price euro 1,00 per share and at the acquisition price of euros 10.000,00 per
share. HOUSEMARKET S.A. participated in the share capital increases according to the resolutions of
the Board of Directors’ of HOUSEMARKET S.A. 275/3.1.2012, 276/7.2.2012, 279/20.3.2012,
281/17.4.2012, 282/8.5.2012 285/29.6.2012 and 292/6.12.2012.

Under the 17/4/2012 Board of Directors Resolution of HOUSEMARKET S.A. and BITA TRITI S.A., the
merge of BITA TRITI S.A. by HOUSEMARKET S.A. was decided in accordance with Law 2166/1993 and
30/4/2012 was set as the modification date. The draft contract of merger has been published and the
merger compleded on 27/12/2012.

On 5/9/2012 the subsidiary INTERSPORT ATHLETICS S.A. acquired the percentage of minority interest
of the company INTERSPORT ATLETIK MAGAZACILIK VE DIS TICARET A.S.

FOURLIS HOLDINGS S.A. does not have any branches.
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The subsidiaries and especially the retail trading companies have developed a significant chain of

stores in Greece and abroad.

Retail Trading of Home Furniture and Household Goods (IKEA stores): The segment
currently, operates seven (7) stores (five (5) in Greece, one (1) in Cyprus and one (1) in Bulgaria). In

November 2012 the first IKEA Pick up Point in Rhodes Island began its operation.

Retail trading of sporting goods (INTERSPORT stores): The segment currently operates eighty
four (84) stores (thirty nine (39) in Greece, twenty two (22) in Romania, four (4) in Bulgaria, three (3)
in Cyprus and sixteen (16) in Turkey). The following stores added to the network during the year 2012
are the two (2) new stores in Greece: Heraklion (15/3/2012), Rhodes Island (10/8/2012), three (3)
new stores in Romania: Palas Iasi (31/5/2012), Foscani (15/6/2012) and Baia Mare (12/10/2012), one
(1) in Cyprus Evagorou (30/11/2012), one (1) in Bulgaria Serdica (28/4/2012) [store in Sofia Mall
interrupted its operations (17/12/2012)] and one (1) in Turkey Ist. Marmara Park (October 2012).

Retail Trading of Fashion Activity (NEW LOOK stores): The retail trading of fashion activity
segment (NEW LOOK stores) launched its operation in Romania in 2011 and operates seven (7) stores.
On 31/12/2012 three (3) new NEW LOOK stores were operating in Romania: Oradea (30/3/2012),
Craiova (7/4/2012) and Palas Iasi (31/5/2012).

Wholesale Trading of Electrical Equipment: Group continues to represent in Greece brands with

international recognition like General Electric, Liebherr, Kdrting.

5. Stock Price Evolution

Below is a chart providing a comparison between FOURLIS HOLDINGS S.A. share price and Athens
Stock Exchange General Index for the period 1/1/2012 to 31/12/2012.

10
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6. Stock Option Plan

Fourlis Holding S.A, following the approval of its General Assembly of June 30, 2008 has proceeded
with a Stock Option Plan for its executives and the executives of its direct and indirect subsidiaries.
The General Assembly has authorized the Board of Directors to arrange all the procedural issues and

materialize the Program.

Based on the above, the Board of Directors of FOURLIS HOLDINGS SA has decided to grand to its
executives and the executives of its direct and indirect subsidiaries the following stock options:

e  223.843 (BoD resolution 26/08/2008),
e  204.000 (BoD resolution 23/2/2009) and
e 102.663 (BoD resolution 24/5/2010).

On 31/12/2009 certain number of participants waved the right to exercise of 111.922 options granted
by the Board of Directors on 26/8/2008.

On 22/11/2010 the Board issued an invitation to the beneficiaries of stock option plan (stock options)
of the Company to exercise their rights. In this invitation, 5 beneficiaries responded and exercised
their right to purchase 39.402 shares of nominal value of 1,00 Euros, in the price of 3,89 Euros per
share. Consequently Company’s share capital was increased from 50.952.920 euros to 50.992.322

euros divided in to 50.992.322 shares of nominal value one (1) euro each.

On 31/10/2011, the beneficiaries of stock option plan waived the right to exercise 111.921 stock
options which were granted by the Board of 26/8/2008.

11
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During period 1/1 — 31/12/2012, participants waived the right to execute 24.871 options, granted by
the Board of Directors on 23/2/2009 and 24/5/2010.

7. Information about Group’s plan of development

On the prospects of the Greek economy, estimates that 2013 will be another year of economic
recession and reduce of available income of consumers, with the corresponding effect on retail sales.
Despite the extremely difficult conditions, with emphasis on the retail, the Group continues to

implement its investment plan, as follows:

In Greece, the Group adjusts its actions in the context formed by the macroeconomic environment. In
other countries, where the Group operates, the business plan is being implemented with selective
investments mainly in the retail trading of Sporting Goods (INTERSPORT).

In the retail segment sporting goods (INTERSPORT stores), a network of eighty four (84) stores in
Greece, Romania, Bulgaria, Cyprus and Turkey in 2013 it is expected five (5) more new stores to be

added in its network.
The policy of exploiting synergies within the Group will continue.

Despite the negative predictions, the Group is able to conquer its goals in accordance with the values

of the Group: "Integrity", "Respect" and "Efficiency".

8. Fourlis Group — Major Threats & Uncertainties

a) Financial Risk Management

The Group is exposed to financial risks such as foreign exchange risk, credit risk, interest rate risk and
liquidity risk. The management of risk is achieved by the central Treasury department, which operates
using specific guidelines set by the Board of Directors. The Treasury department identifies, determines
and hedges the financial risks in cooperation with the Groups’ subsidiaries that face these risks. The
Board of Directors provides written instructions and directions for the general management of the risk,
as well as specific instructions for the management of specific risks such as foreign exchange risk,

interest rate risk and credit risk.
Foreign Exchange Risk:

The Group is subject to foreign exchange risk arising for its transactions in foreign currencies (RON,
USD, TRY, GBP) with suppliers which invoice the Group in currencies other than the local. The Group,

in order to minimize the foreign exchange risk, in certain cases pre - purchases foreign currencies.
Credit risks:

The Group is subject to credit risk arising from the Segment of Wholesale Trading of Electrical

Equipment and is due to the collection of receivables in accordance with the customers’ credit terms.

Interest rate risk:

12
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The Group is subject to cash flow risk which in the case of possible variable interest rates fluctuation,
may affect positively or negatively the cash inflows or outflows related to the Group’s assets or
liabilities. Cash flow risk is minimized via the availability of adequate credit lines and cash. Also, the

Group has entered into Interest Rate Swap (IRS) contracts in order to face interest rate risk.
b) Legal Issues

There are no litigations or legal issues that might have a material impact on the Company and the
Group'’s Consolidated Financial Statements for the period 1/1 - 31/12/2012.

9. Social Responsibility

In 2012, despite the adverse social and economic conditions prevailing in our country, the FOURLIS
Group implemented its Social Responsibility program with responsibility towards the People, the
Society and the Environment. As an official member of the UN Global Compact, since November 2008,
FOURLIS HOLDINGS S.A. is committed to creating the conditions for a better life for everyone.

In January and June 2012 the FOURLIS Group employees participated in the established voluntary
blood drive held at all the FOURLIS Group premises. The FOURLIS Group employees in Bulgaria and
Turkey participated for the first time in the abovementioned action and all the Group’s employees

supported this important institution as every year.

In the context of the “"EF ZIN (Healthy Living) — Love yourself” program, all the Group’s employees in
Greece, Cyprus and Bulgaria had the opportunity to measure their blood sugar for free, during the free
sugar blood examinations carried out in many of the Group’s premises, while they also took useful

advice and information regarding diabetes.

Furthermore, INTERSPORT Turkey organized free eye tests for all employees, while in Greece the
FOURLIS Group employees had the opportunity to make medical - diagnostic examinations in

collaboration with medical and diagnostic centers at special prices.

Once more, the FOURLIS Group employees in Greece and Cyprus participated in the established
athletic tournaments organized in Attica, Larissa and Cyprus while once again, the honors students

and those admitted at Universities were awarded a prize for their performance.

Finally, the employees of HOUSEMARKET continued to benefit from the balanced diet menu available
in all the IKEA staff restaurants on a weekly basis. This menu is prepared by an experienced dietitian

nutritionist, based on the daily menu offered in the restaurants of the IKEA staff.

In 2012, the FOURLIS Group continued its important Social Responsibility program by focusing on the
support of homeless and indigent people. Within this framework, HOUSEMARKET inaugurated its
cooperation with BOROUME, a non - profit organization through which the IKEA offers, on a daily
basis, to Institutions, Organizations and families in need, meals from all its restaurants in Greece. Early
in the year, HOUSEMARKET furnished and decorated the offices of BOROUME so that volunteers can

work in a pleasant and operational environment.

13
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At the same time, HOUSEMARKET undertook the equipping, renovation and reforming of the Homeless
Support Center and Hostel of the KLIMAKA organization, thus contributing to its momentous work on

the support of homeless.

The FOURLIS Group also supported various purposes by donating products, such as the Social Grocery
of Larissa, the KRIKKIO Girls Orphanage in Larissa, the ANIXTI AGALIA for the renovation of the
children’s library in Lipsi Island, while in Cyprus it began the renovation of the Red Cross Children’s

convalescent home which will be completed in 2013.

In 2012, HOUSEMARKET implemented several actions in collaboration with UNICEF, to support its
purposes, while the IKEA stores accommodated organizations like ALMA ZOIS, MEDECINS SANS
FRONTIERES, WWF etc, giving them the opportunity to acquaint their actions to the public and gain
new members. Finally many organizations took advantage of discounts to buy products of the
FOURLIS Group companies, HOUSEMARKET, INTERSPORT and FOURLIS TRADE.

In 2012, INTERSPORT continued its own Social Responsibility program, WE REACH THE EDGES,
through which it visited primary schools at remote areas of Crete and distributed sports equipment,

while athletes spoke to students about the importance of exercise and healthy diet in their lives.

Finally the FOURLIS Group participated in the institution of scholarships of the Department of Banking
and Financial Management of the University of Piraeus, while employees in Greece and Cyprus, just
before the Christmas holidays, collected food, clothing and other essentials to offer them to
Institutions and Organizations. A similar action was also organized by the INTERSPORT Turkey

employees.

Being aware of the urgent need to protect the environment, the recycling and "energy saving”
programs continued in all the Group’s companies. Meanwhile, HOUSEMARKET and INTERSPORT
participated in the "EARTH HOUR", while HOUSEMARKET created "Sustainable Homes" in Attica
(Airport Store) and the Thessaloniki and Cyprus stores, aiming to sensitize and inform the public and
visitors about the ways we can save energy at home. IKEA also retained its Recycling Centers at

Egaleo, Piraeus and Ioannina.

On the “World Environment Day”, a campaign to sensitize employees on environmental issues was
held in all the FOURLIS Group companies, while HOUSEMARKET made a series of actions within and
outside the stores to sensitize the public and it was awarded a prize at the ENVIRONMENTAL AWARDS
2013, in the ENERGY MASTERING-ENERGY CAMPAING category, for an action of public sensitization

which it organized with WWF and was held in Thessaloniki.

Finally, in June 2012, the Social Responsibility Department issued the third Social Responsibility Report

since its establishment.

10. Related parties transactions

As Related parties are considered the Company, the subsidiary companies, the associate companies,

14
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the management and the first line managers. The major transactions, which were eliminated for the

purposes of consolidation of financial statements between Group companies, are mainly selling goods

among companies in the same segment and logistics services - supply, maintenance - repairs and

management fee.

Detailed information on the related parties’ receivables/ payables for the Group and the Company for
the period 31/12/2012 and 31/12/2011 is analysed as follows:
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Third Parties transactions for the period 1/1 to 31/12/2012 and for the period 1/1 to 31/12/2011 are

analysed as follows:

GROUP COMPANY
2012 2011 2012 2011
Revenues 1 0 3.250 790
Other operating Income o 0 424 427
Total 1 0 3674 1.217
GROUP COMPANY
2012 2011 2012 2031
Administrative expenses S 31 7 0
Distribution expenses 146 58 (4] (4]
Other operaling expenses 0 0 0 0
Total 240 89 7 0

During the years 2012 and 2011 the following transactions have been applied among FOURLIS
HOLDINGS SA and the subsidiaries of the Group:

GROUP COMPANY
2012 2011 2012 2011

Revenue 18.138 23,265 3.250 790
Cost of Sales 13,380 15.156 2480 494
Other Income 1.885 1473 424 427
Administrative expenses 3.638 6.321 52 9
Distribution expenses 2962 3.000 0 0
Dividends 0 0 0 0

GROUP COMPANY

31122012 31nz2011 322012 311272011

Trade recenvables 11472 10.304 1.539 m
|nventory 343 515 0 0
Creditors 10.552 9.024 417 422

11. Human Recourses of the Group

The total number of employees of the Group as at 31, December 2012 and 31, December 2011 was
3.531 and 3.512 respectively. The total number of employees of the Company for the same reporting
periods set above was at 58 and 3 respectively. The increase of the number of employees of the

Company in 2012 is a result of the centralization of support services for Group’s companies in Greece.
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12. Management members’ remuneration

During periods 1/1 — 31/12/2012 and 1/1 — 31/12/2011, transactions and fees with the management

members were as follows:

GROUP COMPANY

2012 2011 2012 2011

Transactions and fees of management 2938 3,159 428 554
members

13. Share buyback

Board of Directors of FOURLIS HOLDINGS S.A. with its convention on 24/8/2010, decided to
implement the decision of the General Assembly of June 11, 2010 of share buybacks. According to
these resolutions the Board of Directors from 24/8/2010 until 11/6/2012 bought buyback of 541.948
shares with a total value of euros 2.083.394,76 at an average price per share Euros 3,8443. On
11/6/2012 this share buyback program was completed. The Company during the period 1/1-11/6/2012
bought buyback 83.099 own shares with a total value of 84.979,17.

The Annual Shareholders General Assembly of the parent company “FOURLIS Holdings S.A.” held on
15/6/2012, approved a new share buyback program of up to 5% of the issued share capital or
2.549.616 shares. The Share Buy Back will take place within twenty four (24) months from the Annual
General Assembly approval, until 15/6/2014. The lowest purchase will be € 0,50 per share and the
maximum € 15,00 per share. According to this resolution the Company did not buy buyback from
15/6/2012 until 31/12/2012. The General Assembly also authorized the Board of the Company to
define the exact time, number and price of the buyback of shares. On 25/2/2013 the Company owns
541.948 shares (1,06% of the total share capital of the Company with total acquisition value
2.083.394,76).

14. Explanatory report — information according to article 4 par. 7 of Law
3556/2007

a. The Company’s share capital.

The Company’s share capital amounts to euro 50.992.322 and consists of 50.992.322 nominal shares

with a nominal value of Euro one (1) each.

All the shares are common nominal shares, listed on the Athens Stock Exchange (category: Large
Capitalization). Each share entitles to one vote. The shareholders’ responsibility is limited to the
nominal value of the shares that they own with an exception of the humber of own shares that do not

have the right to vote.

b. Restrictions as to the transfer of the Company’s shares
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The transfer of shares of the Company is made as prescribed by law and there are no restrictions as to

their transfer by the Company’s Articles of Association.

c. Significant direct or indirect shareholdings as prescribed by articles 9 - 11 of Law
3556/2007

At 31/12/2012, the following shareholders owned more than 5% of the voting shares of the Company:

e Dafni A. Fourlis: 18,327%.
e Mitica Limited: 5,883%

d. Preference shares

The Company does not have any preference shares.

e. Restrictions to voting rights

There are no restrictions to voting rights arising for the Company’s Articles of Association.

f. Shareholder agreements resulting in restrictions transfer of shares or to their voting

rights

The Company is not aware of any Shareholder agreements resulting in restrictions to transfer of

shares or to their voting rights as it is prescribed by the Company’s Articles of Association.

g. Rules for the appointment and replacement of members of the Board of Directors and
the amendment of the Articles of Association which differ to those prescribed by
Codified Law 2190/1920.

The rules for the appointment and replacement of members of the Board of Directors and the

amendment of the Articles of Association do not differ to those prescribed by Codified Law 2190/1920.

h. The Board of Directors’ or of several of its members, roles for the issue of new shares or
the shares buy back in accordance with article 16 of Codified Law 2190/1920

1) According to art 13 par 1 (b) of Law 2190/ 1920 and the Article 4 par. 1 of Association, during the
first 5 years from the Shareholders General Assembly decision, the Board of Directors has the right,
based on a majority of 2/3 of total members, to: a) Increase Share Capital in total or partially through
the issue of new shares for an amount that cannot exceed 1/2 of the paid in share capital at the date
that Board was awarded the aforementioned right and b) Issue Corporate bonds that will be converted
to shares for an amount that cannot exceed 1/2 of the paid in share capital. In this case the provisions
of paragraphs 2, 3 and 4 of article 3a of Law 2190/ 1920. The Share Capital increases according to the
above do not constitute an amendment of the Articles of Association. The aforementioned General
Assembly decision has to be published in accordance with Art. 7b of Law 2190/ 1920.

The authority of the Board of Directors can be renewed from the General Assembly with a decision
that has to be published in accordance with Art. 7b of Law 2190/ 1920, for a time spread that will not

exceed 5 years, for every renewal and its validity commences after each 5 years period end.
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In the case that the Reserves exceed 1/4 of the paid in capital then for a Share Capital increase a
decision of the Shareholders General Assembly is obligatory along with an amendment of the
corresponding article of Articles of Association. All the above decisions are valid with a presence

greater than the 2/3 of the paid in capital representatives.

In case of non presence of the 2/3, the 1st Repeated General Assembly will take place within 20 days
from the General Assembly date was cancelled. The 1st Repeated General Assembly has to be
announced 10 days before. The 1st Repeated General Assembly is valid if at minimum, the 1/2 of the

paid in capital representatives are physically present.

In the case of a non presence of the 1/2, the 2nd Repeated General Assembly will take place within 20
days from the 1st Repeated General Assembly date was cancelled. The 2nd Repeated General
Assembly has to be announced 10 days before. The 2nd Repeated General Assembly is valid if at

minimum, the 1/5 of the paid in share capital representatives are physically present.

These decisions of the General Assembly Meeting of shareholders are considered by a majority of two
thirds (2/3) of the votes represented therein.

2) The 1% Repeated Annual General Assembly Meeting of shareholders " FOURLIS Holdings SA " on
30/6/2008, acting under the provisions of paragraph 13 of Article 13 and paragraphs 3 and 4 of Article
29 and paragraph 2 of Article 31 of Law 2190/ 1920, implemented stock option plan (Stock Options) -
hereinafter "Program" - to executives of the Company and its affiliated companies within the meaning
of paragraph 5 of article 42e of this Act, and authorized the Board of Directors, to regulate procedural
matters and detail. The Board of Directors, under the terms of the plan and the law gives to recipients,
who exercised their right to obtain, certificates of shares and issue and deliver the shares in these
recipients, increasing the share capital of the Company certifying the capital increase. These increases
in share capital are not amendments to the Association. The Board of Directors during the last months
of the fiscal year within which capital increases occurred, as determined above, adjust with the
decision the article of Association on the capital, so as to predict the amount of capital, as shown after

these increases, made public in compliance with Article 7b.

3) The Annual General Meeting of shareholders “"FOURLIS Holding SA" of 11/6/2010 decided, in
accordance with Article 16 of Law 2190/ 1920, approving purchase from the company's shares buy
back, until the number of 2,547,646 shares (5% of share capital paid in) within 24 months of
approval, until 11.06.2012, with a minimum acquisition price of one euro (1.00 euro) per share and
maximum twenty euro (20.00) per share accordance with Article 16 of L. 2190/ 1920 and authorized
the Board of Directors to determine, but within the above framework, the exact timing, number and
price for acquisition such shares. Related to the program on the issue of new shares and the share
buybacks for the period 01/01 to 31/12/2012 more details listed above, in the Board of Directors
Report in paragraph 6 Stock Option Plan and 13 Share Buyback.

i. Significant agreements that the issuer has entered into, which come into force, are
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amended or terminate in the event that there are changes in control due to listing of

the Company on the stock exchange

There are no significant agreements the issuer has entered into, which come into force, are amended
or terminate in the event that there are changes in control due to listing of the Company on the stock
exchange.

j. Agreements that the issuer has entered into with members of the Board of Directors or
its employees, which provide for indemnity in the event of termination or redundancy

without cause due to the listing of the Company on the stock exchange.

There are no agreements that the issuer has entered into with members of the Board of Directors or
its employees, which provide for indemnity in the event of termination or redundancy without cause

due to the listing of the Company on the stock exchange.

15. Corporate Governance Statement for the period 1/1—-31/12/2012

According to Law 3873/2010 article 2, paragraph 2, the Board of Directors declared the following:

a) Reference on the Corporate Governance Code which the company is coming under or has

voluntarily decided to comply with and the website that can be found.

The Company has decided (Board of Directors decision on 28/2/2011) to voluntarily comply with the
Code of Corporate Governance that was drafted at the initiative of SEV for Listed Companies (issued
March 2011) which is posted on the websites of SEV at: http://www.sev.org.gr and of Greek council

corporate governance at: http://www.esed.org.gr.

The purpose of Corporate Governance Code of SEV is to promote good governance in the belief that

this will enhance the long - term success and competitiveness of the Greek companies.

The Corporate Governance Code contains two types of provisions: “general principles”, which are
general guidelines aiming on providing a general framework within principles can be addressed and
most issues of corporate governance can be resolved. Each principle is followed by one or more
specific practices that further develop the general principles. The Code follows the approach of

compliance or explanation.
The general principles of the Code cover the following topics:

¢ Role and responsibilities of the Board

e  Size and composition of the Board

e Role and profile of the chairman of the Board
e Duties and conduct of Board members

e Nomination of Board members

¢  Functioning of the Board
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Board evaluation

Internal control system

Level and structure of remuneration
Communication with shareholders

The General Assembly Meeting of shareholders

b) Reference to the corporate governance practices beyond the requirements of the Law and the

website that can be found

The Corporate Governance Code drafted by SEV when refers to existing, mandatory legal rules is using

present tense to distinguish these requirements from the voluntary practices of the code.

Indicative, the following Corporate Governance practices applied by the company in addition to the

provisions of the Law:

The Board of Directors consists of seven (7) to fifteen (15) Board Members. At least one third
(1/3) of the Board Members comprise independent non - executive members, who are free of
material conflict of interest with the company and do not have any close ties with the

management, controlling shareholders or the company.

The Board of Directors is assisted by a competent, suitably qualified and experienced company
Secretary. All Board Members have access to the services of the company Secretary, whose role
is to provide practical support to the Chairman and other Board members, both as a group and
individually, and ensure that the Board complies with internal rules and relevant laws and

regulations.

The Board of Directors has established a Nomination and Remuneration Committee which meets
sufficiently regularly and ensures an efficient and transparent process for both the nomination of
Board members and for the formulation of policy and principles of the company relating to the

remuneration of executive Board members and key executives.

The responsibilities of the Chairman are clearly established by the Board of Directors and clearly
distinguished from those of the Chief Executive Officer and reflected in the Internal Regulation of

the company.

The Board of Dierctors, supported by its Audit Committee, sets appropriate policies on internal
control and ensures that the system is functioning effectively. The Board of Directors also defines
the process to be adopted for the monitoring of the effectiveness of internal control. This
encompasses both the scope and frequency of the reports it receives from the internal audit
service and reviews during the year, as well as the process for the annual assessment of internal

control.

The Chairman of the Board of Directors should be available to meet shareholders of the company
to discuss eventual governance concerns. The Chairman of the Board of Directors should ensure

that the views of the shareholders are communicated to the whole Board.
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e The Audit Committee ensures the functioning of the internal control service according to

international professional standards

c) Description of the main characteristics of internal control and risk management of the company in

relation to the process of preparation of financial statements

The company has developed and implements a process for issuing financial statements (consolidated
and separate) and the Financial Report. The Group companies record their transactions in their
information systems and through automated procedures the consolidation application is updated.
Crosschecking of data is performed and is reviewed (intra - group transactions, receivables and
payables, etc.). Elimination and consolidation entries are recorded and the financial statements with
the associate notes are developed. After the completion of audit procedures, the Financial Report that

includes financial statements is submitted to the Board of Directors for approval.

The main characteristics of the internal control and risk management systems employed by the
Company in connection with the process of preparation of the financial statements and the Financial

Report are the following:

o Adequate knowledge, skills and availability of personnel involved with clearly separated roles and
areas of responsibility.

e  Existence of recorded and updated procedures related to the issuance of financial results.

¢  Regular review of accounting principles and policies.

e  Existence of control activities relevant to information systems used.

¢  Regular communication between the external auditors, Executive Management and the Audit
Committee.

¢ Regular meetings for validation and registration of the significant estimations affecting the
financial statements.

e Existence of risk management methodology and documentation for its implementation.

Presentation of the results of risk management to the Board of Directors.
e Existence of unique Chart of Accounts for all Group companies and centralized change
management.

¢  On the recommendation of the Audit Committee, annual evaluation by the Board of Directors of
the internal control and risk management systems applied for the issuance of financial

statements.

d) Additional Information pursuant to sections c), d), f) g) and h) of Article 10 par.1 of the 2004/25/EK

Directive, regarding the Takeover Bid, since the Company is subject to the Directive

During the year no Takeover Bids or Business Combination took place.

e) Information about the General Shareholders Assembly, mode of operation, description of the rights

of the shareholders and how these can be exercised

22
Annual Financial Report for the perfod 1/1/2012 to 31/12/2012



FOURLIS

emnmI Ao frarriaewn

The convocation of General Assembly of Shareholders of the Company is in accordance with the Law

2190/ 1920, as amended.

Regarding the operating method of the General Assembly, the Company follows the practices

mentioned below:

e The Shareholders of the Company are informed in advance and up to schedule, for the
convocation of the General Assembly, by press publications which are in accordance with the

Law.

¢  The Company publicizes on its website the Invitation of the General Assembly, the representation
mode of the Shareholders, the deadlines and the mode of exercise of their rights as well as the

voting results for each topic of the agenda.

¢ The Company publicizes on time on its website Explanatory Note regarding the agenda, the
relevant proposals by Board of Directors, the required quorum and majority for the approval of
the proposals. The Explanatory Note is also available in hard copy in Company’s Head Office and

is distributed to the Shareholders entering in the General Assembly.

Ensuring that each shareholder is able to participate at the General Assembly: The Company,
according Law 3884/ 2010, in its first adaption at the convocation of the Annual General Assembly of

2011, takes all measures for the consistent process and to ensure the Shareholders rights.

The responsibilities of the General Assembly are mentioned in the Extract of the Article of Association

of the Company which is posted on its website: http://www.fourlis.gr

f) Composition and functioning of the Board and any other administrative, management or supervisory

bodies or committees of the company

The Board, its independent members and all members of Audit Committee, elected by the Annual
General Meeting of shareholders held on 15/6/2012. The term of Board members in accordance with
the articles of Association and of members of Audit Committee, ends during the first half of 2017,
when the Ordinary General Assembly Meeting of Shareholders will elect new Board. According the
decision of the Board on 15/6/2012, the Board was constituted and the responsibilities of its members

were defined and the representation of the Company that is in force today and is as follows:

The Board of FOURLIS HOLDINGS SA is:

Chairman, Executive Member, Member of Nomination and Remuneration | Vassilis S. Fourlis
Committee

Vice — Chairman, Executive Member Dafni A. Fourlis

CEO, Executive Member, Member of Nomination and Remuneration | Apostolos D. Petalas
Committee

Director, Executive Member Ioannis P. Lioupis
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Director, Corporate Social Responsibility Director, Executive Member Lida S. Fourlis

Director, Non — Executive Member, Member of Audit Committee Ioannis Ev.Brebos

Director, Independent Non - Executive Member, Member of Audit | Eftichios Th.Vassilakis

Committee

Director, Independent Non - Executive Member, Member of Audit | Ioannis K. Papaioannou

Committee

Director, Independent Non — Executive Member, Member of Nomination | Ioannis A.Costopoulos

and Remuneration Committee

The CV's of the members of the Board of Directors are listed on the Company’s website:

(http://www.fourlis.gr)

The main responsibilities of the Board of Directors include:

Approving the overall long - term strategy and operational goals of the Company.

Approving annual budgets and business plans and deciding on major capital expenditures,

acquisitions and divestitures.

Selecting and replacing, if necessary, the executive leadership of the company and overseeing

succession planning.

Monitoring the performance of senior management, and aligning executive remuneration with the

longer term interests of the company and its shareholders.
Ensuring the existence of risk management and internal control system.

Ensuring the integrity of the company’s accounts, financial reporting systems and public

disclosures, as well as the effectiveness of the systems of internal control and risk management.

Vigilance regarding existing and potential conflicts of interest between both the Company and its
senior management, board members or major shareholders (including shareholders with direct or
indirect authority to form or influence the composition and behaviour of the Board) and
appropriate management of such conflicts. For this purpose, the Board adopts supervisory

process of transactions with the interests of transparency and protection of corporate interests.

Ensuring that there is a satisfactory process for monitoring the company’s compliance with

relevant laws and regulations.

Deciding on and monitoring the effectiveness of the company’s governance processes including
its system of decision - making and delegation of authorities and duties to other key executives.
Formulating, disseminating and implementing key values and principles of conduct governing the
company'’s relations with its shareholders.

Approving Internal Regulation Charter, Corporate Governance Code, Code of Conduct and their

revisions.

The Board of Directors should meet sufficiently regularly to discharge its duties effectively. At the

24

Annual Financial Report for the perfod 1/1/2012 to 31/12/2012




FOURLIS

emnmI Ao frarriaewn

beginning of every calendar year, the Board of Directors adopts a calendar of meetings and a 12 -

month agenda, which may be reviewed depending on the Company’s needs. In the year 2012 the

Board of Directors held 10 meetings.

The remuneration of the Board of Directors is approved by the Annual General Meeting of

shareholders.

The functioning of the Board of Directors is detailed in the Board Internal Regulation. The Board

Internal Regulation contains the following sections:

Election of the Board

Board members

Establishment of independence of candidates or current members of the Board
Term of the Board

Establishment of the Board as a body
Responsibilities of the Board

Duties and conduct of Board members
Board committees

Prohibitions

Meetings of the Board

Quorum of the Board and decision making
Support of the Board

Minutes of meetings of the Board

Board is supported by two committees: the Audit Committee and the Nomination and Remuneration

Committee.

The Audit Committee is appointed by the General Meeting of shareholders (Article 37 of Law

3693/2008). The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee are the following:

Monitoring the financial reporting process.

Monitoring the effectiveness of internal control and risk management systems, and monitoring the

proper working of the internal audit function.
Monitoring the progress of the statutory audit of separate and consolidated financial statements.

Reviewing and monitoring issues related to the existence and maintenance of objectivity and
independence of the external auditors, especially with regard to  applying the non audited
services. The function of the Audit Committee is detailed in the Corporate Governance Code and
the Audit Committee Charter approved by the Board and posted on the website of the Company
(http://www.fourlis.gr). The Audit Committee since its inception (early 2003) by the end of 2012
held 37 meetings (4 meetings/ year).
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The main responsibility of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is to submit proposals to the
Board of Directors for the nomination of Board Members and key senior executives along with their

remuneration.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is responsible for:

e  Proposing to the Board of Directors the remuneration of each individual executive Board Member,
including bonuses, incentive payments and share options.

¢ Reviewing and making proposals to the Board of Directors on the total annual package of variable

compensation in the Company.

e Reviewing and proposing to the Board of Directors (and, via the Board of Directors, the General

Assembly of shareholders, when required) on the stock option and/ or share award programs.

¢  Proposing targets for performance — related compensation or targets related to stock-options or

granting of shares.

e Reviewing regularly the salary of executive Board Members and other contractual terms, including

severance payments and pension arrangements.
¢  Making proposals to the Board on any business policy related to remuneration.
e  Reviewing the annual remuneration report.
The function of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors is detailed in
the Charter of the Committee approved by the Board of Directors and posted on the web site of the
Company (http://www.fourlis.gr). The Nomination and Remuneration Committee Charter contains the
following sections:
e  The purpose of the Committee
e  Members and term of the Committee
¢ Duties and responsibilities of the Committee
¢  Functioning of the Committee

. Disclosure of the Committee Charter

g) If the company deviates from the Corporate Governance Code that applies, the Corporate

Governance Statement includes a description of that deviation with reference to the relevant

parts of the Corporate Governance Code and provides explanation for the deviation. If the

company does not comply with certain provisions of the Corporate Governance Code, the

Corporate Governance Statement includes a reference to the provision that is not applied and

explain the reasons for that deviation.

The Company comply with the Code of Corporate Governance that was drafted at the initiative of SEV
for Listed Companies (version March 2011) with minor deviations that are presented and explained in

the following table.
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SEV Code of Corporate Governance for listed
companies (version March 2011)

Explanation/ Justification of deviations
from
special practices of the Corporate
Governance Code

The Board of Directors should comprise a majority
of non - executive members (including
independent non — executive members) and at
least two (2) executive members (specific practice
2.2, Size and composition of the Board).

The Board of Directors consists of five (5)
executive and four (4) non - executive
members, including three (3) independent non
— executive members. The term of the current
Board of Directors ends in the first half of
2017. The review of the implementation of this
specific practice will be finalized when the
second edition of the Code of Corporate
Governance of the Greek Council of Corporate
Governance (GCCG).

The Board of Directors should appoint an
independent vice — chairman from among its
independent Board members where a company
chooses a) to combine the roles of Chairman and
Chief Executive, b) appoint an executive Chairman.
If a former Chief Executive of a company is
appointed as Chairman within three (3) years of his
retirement as Chief Executive, he should be
considered as being an Executive Chairman
(specific practice 3.3, Role and profile of the
chairman of the Board).

The independent Vice — Chairman should be
empowered to request the Chairman to include
specific items on the Board’s agenda. This does not
affect the legal rights of other Board members to
request a meeting of the Board or to actually call a
meeting in case the Chairman or Vice — Chairman
does not comply with their request. The
independent Vice Chairman should also coordinate
non — executive Board members and give voice to
their views. He should be responsible for leading
the Board’s evaluation of the Chairman and the
meeting of non — executive Board members (as
described in paragraph A.VI. (6.5)). He should also
be available to shareholders to discuss issues of
corporate governance (specific practice 3.4, Role
and profile of the chairman of the Board).

The Board of Directors consists of five (5)
executive and four (4) non — executive
members, including three (3) independent non
— executive members. Both the Chairman and
the Vice Chairman of the Board are executive
members. The term of the current Board of
Directors ends in the first half of 2017. The
review of the implementation of this specific
practice will be finalized when the second
edition of the Code of Corporate Governance
of the Greek Council of Corporate Governance
(GCCG).

Board members will be elected by shareholders at
a maximum term of four (4) years (specific practice
5.1 Nomination of Board Members)

According to the Company’s Articles the term
of Board members is determined by a
maximum term of five (5). In the future, the
emplementation of this specific practice will be
review.

Executive Board members should undertake to
resign from the Board upon the termination (in
whatever manner) of their executive duties
(specific practice 5.3, Nomination of Board
members).

This is at the discretion of the professional
awareness of each Board Member. Ultimately
is the responsibility of the General Meeting of
shareholders.
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SEV Code of Corporate Governance for listed
companies (version March 2011)

Explanation/ Justification of deviations
from
special practices of the Corporate
Governance Code

The Nomination Committee should be composed of
at least 3 members. The majority of its members
should be non - executive Board members. The
Committee should be chaired by an independent
non - executive Board member. The Committee
may be chaired by the Chairman of the Board if (a)
the conditions of section A.III (3.3) apply and (b)
the Committee includes at least one independent
non - executive among its members (specific
practice 5.5, Nomination of Board members).

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee
consists of four (4) members, the Chairman of
the Board of Directors, the CEO, a member of
the Board and the Director of Human
Resources and is chaired by the Chairman of
the Board. Since the Committee was
established and operating effectively as the
Human Resources Committee before the
adoption of Corporate Governance Code, was
considered more appropriate this Committee to
go on with a parallel enrichment of its role and
responsibilities (concerning the nomination
responsibilities).

The evaluation of the performance of the Board
and its Committees should take place at least every
2 years in line with a clearly established procedure.
The evaluation exercise should be led by the
Chairman and its results discussed by the Board.
The Chairman should act on the results of the
performance evaluation by addressing the
weaknesses of the Board. The Board should also
evaluate the performance of its Chairman. This
should be led by the independent Vice - Chairman,
if appointed, or by another non - executive Board
member (specific practice 7.1, Board evaluation).

The non - executive Board members should
convene periodically without the executive
members in order to evaluate the Ilatter are
performance and discuss their remuneration
(specific practice 7.2, Board evaluation).

The responsibilities of the Board of Directors
include the assessment of its Committees. For
the evaluation of the effectiveness of the
Board, the Company has not ended to an
acceptable methodology yet. For this reason,
compliance with special practice will be
reviewed upon finalization of the second
edition of the Code of Corporate Governance
of the Greek Council of Corporate Governance
(GCCG).

Executive Board members’ contracts should provide
that the Board may demand full or partial recovery
of any bonuses awarded on the basis of restated
financial statements of previous years or otherwise
erroneous financial data used to calculate such
bonuses (specific practice 1.3, Level and structure
of remuneration).

The existing contracts of the Company do not
include this term. In case of a new contract,
the inforcement of this special practice will be
revisited.

Individual remuneration of executive Board
members should be approved by the Board, on the
proposal of the Remuneration Committee without
the presence of executive Board members. When
remuneration needs to be approved by the General
Meeting of shareholders according to the law, the
proposal to the General Meeting should be
developed by the Board according to the above
procedure. In determining the remuneration of
executive Board members, the board should
consider (a) their role and responsibilities, (b) their
performance against predetermined quantitative

The majority of the Members of the Board of
Directors are five (5) executive members.
Under the current composition of the Board of
Directors, it is not possible a decision to be
made only by the non - executive Members.
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SEV Code of Corporate Governance for listed Explanation/ Justification of deviations
companies (version March 2011) from
special practices of the Corporate
Governance Code

and qualitative objectives, (c) the economic
situation, performance and outlook of the
company, (d) the remuneration for similar
executive functions in peer companies (specific
practice 1.4, Level and structure of remuneration)

16. Subsequent Events

Current loans include an amount of € 12 million of RENTIS S.A for which, in 2013 and until the date of
approval of the Financial Statements, the company signed an amendment to the agreement to extent

the payment terms, the amount will be included in non — current loans from the next reporting period.

Under the new tax law L. 4110/ 23.1.2013 the tax rate, of entities located in Greece, increases from
20% to 26% for fiscal years on or after January 1, 2013. For companies of FOURLIS Group which are
located in Greece, if the deferred tax on 31/12/2012 calculation was based on the new tax rate,
Deferred Taxes Assets would have increased by the amount of € 51 thousand for FOURLIS HOLDINGS
S.A. and by the amount of € 754 thousand for the Greek subsidiaries in the financial statements of
December 31, 2012.

Concluding the Annual Report of the Board of Directors, we propose to the Annual General Meeting of

Shareholders for the year 2013, no dividend distribution.

This Report, the Annual Financial Statements of 2012, the Notes on the Annual Financial Statements
along with the Auditors Report, have also been published at the Group’s web site, address:

http://www.fourlis.gr.
Neo Psychiko, 25/2/2013

The Board of Directors

29
Annual Financial Report for the perfod 1/1/2012 to 31/12/2012



FOURLIS

enNIao? frarriaewn

The annual Financial Statements included in pages 33 to 38 are in accordance with the IFRS as

applied in the European Union, are those approved by the Board of Directors of “Fourlis Holdings SA”

on 25/2/2013 and are signed by the following:

Chairman

Vassilis St. Fourlis
ID No. £ - 700173

Finance Manager

Maria I. Theodoulidou
ID No. T - 134715

Annual Financial Report for the perfod 1/1/2012 to 31/12/2012

CEO

Apostolos D. Petalas

ID No. AK - 021139

Chief Accountant

Sotirios I. Mitrou

ID No. AI — 557890
Ch. Acct. Lic. No. 30609 A Class
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THIS REPORT IS A FREE TRANSLATION OF THE GREEK ORIGINAL

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholders of «kFOURLIS HOLDING S.A.»
Report on the Separate and Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying separate and consolidated financial statements of FOURLIS
HOLDING S.A. (“the Company”), which comprise the separate and consolidated statements of
financial position as at December 31, 2012, and the separate and consolidated statements of
comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Separate and Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these separate and
consolidated financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Union and for such internal controls as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of separate and consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these separate and consolidated financial statements
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards of Auditing.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance whether the separate and consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the separate and consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the separate and
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
separate and consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the separate and consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying separate and consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of FOURLIS HOLDING S.A. as at December 31, 2012, and of
their financial performance and their cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

a) (a) The Directors’ Report includes a statement of corporate governance which contains the
information required by paragraph 3d article 43a of Codified Law 2190/1920.

b) (b) We confirm that the information given in the Directors’ Report is consistent with the
accompanying separate and consolidated financial statements and complete in the context of the
requirements of articles 43a, 108 and 37 of Codified Law 2190/1920.

Athens, February 25, 2013

The Certified Auditor Accountant

SOFIA KALOMENIDES
S.0.E.L. No 13301

ERNST & YOUNG (HELLAS)
CERTIFIED AUDITORS ACCOUNTANTS S.A.
11" KM NATIONAL ROAD ATHENS-LAMIA
14451 METAMORFOSI
S.0.E.L. R.N. 107
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Statement of Financial Position (Consolidated and Separate

as at December 31, 2012 and at December 31,2011
(In thousands of Euro, unless otherwise stated)

GROUP COMPANY
Assots Note 311212012 31122011 311122012 31122011
Non-current assets
Property plant and equipment 7 235472 244 656 62: 58
Investment Proparty 8 7.600 8.782 0 0
Intangible Assets 9 15.357 16.135 99 114
Investments in affiliates and associates 10 21.288 13.723 97.203 95,193
Investments 10 95 95 95 95
Long Term receivables 6.316 6.667 139 138
Deferred Taxes 2 8.302 7.079 1700 87
Total non-current assets 208.429 297.136 97768 65,685
Current assets '
Inventory " 16.767 88.573 0 0
Income tax recelvable 7.361 9,358 3075 3,650
Trade recelvables 12 16.838 18.569 1.560° 815
Other receivables 13 20,754 21,145 461 534
Cash & cash equivalent 14 41.825 56,204 2.328 4916
Total current assets 163.545 193,939 7425 9915
Total Assets 461973 491,076 105,193 105,600
SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY & LIABILITIES
Shareholders Equity
Share Capltal 15 50,992 50,992 50,992 50.992
Share premlium reserve 11.834 11.837 12,322/ 12.322
Reserves 16 35,544 33311 28.903 29.276
Retained eamings 78.519 91,658 11,168 11,597
Total shareholders equity (a) 176.888 187.799 103.385 104.187
Non controlling interest (b) 1 (119) 0 0
Total Equity (c)=(a)+(b) 176.889 187.680 103.385 104,187
Liabilitles
Non current Liablities
Loans and borrowings 20 123.827 89,228 0 0
Employee ratirement banefits 18 2373 2.181 185 45
Deferred Taxes 2 1421 1.632 0 0
Other non-current liabilities 6.265 6.649 121 121
Total non current Liabliities 133.885 99.691 306 165
Current Liabliities
Short term loans for working capltal 20 41.491 52,805 0 0
Current portion of non-current loans and
borrowings 20 11,179 54673 0 0
Short-term portion of non-current Lease 20 323 3018 0 0
Income Tax Payable 2 2.054 2031 20 20
Accounts payable and other current labilities 21 93,244 91.178 1,482 1.228
Total current Liabilities 151,186 203,705 1.502 1.248
Total Liabilitles (d) 285,084 303,396 1.808 1413
Total Equity & Liabilities (c) + (d) 461.973 491,076 105,193 105.600
The accompanying notes on pages 39 to 93 are an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income (Con
1/1to31/12/2012and 1/1 t

(In thousands of Euro, unless otherwise stated)

Note

Revenue 5,20
Cost of Goods Sold 5,29
Gross Profit/(Loss)

Other operating income
Distribution expenses
Administrative expenses
Other operating expenses
Operating Profit/ (Loss)

(220 e e )

Total finance cost
Total finance income
(Expense)/income from associate compa 6,10
Profit / (Loss) before Tax

D D

Income tax 22
Net Income/Loss (A)

Attributable to.

Equity holders of the parent
Non controlling interest

Net Income/Loss (A)

Other comprehensive income/(expenses)
Foreign currency translation from foreign operations

Actuarial gains (losses) on defined
benefit pension plan after tax

Effective portion of changes in fair value
of cash flow hedges

Comprehensive Income/Losses after Tax (B)

Total Comprehensive Income/(Losses) after tax
(A+B)
Attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent

Non controlling interest

Total Comprehensive Income/(Losses)
after tax (A)+(B)

Basic (Losses)/Eamings per Share (in
Euro)

Diluted (Losses)/Eamings per Share (in
Euro)

23

23

1/1-
31/12/2012

lidate

for the peri

1/12/2011

GROUP

Continued

1/1-31/12/2011

Discontinued

Total Operations

Operations Operations
420.254 436.033 2216 438,249
(260.541)  (263.410) (2652)  (266.062)
158.713 172.623 (436) 172.187
11.095 3616 2.868 6.485
(140.382)  (130.574) (253)  (130.827)
(25.052) (29.549) (1.292) (30.841)
(2.588) (1.894) (134) (2.028)
2.786 14.223 754 14.977
(17102)  (12.069) (1.861)  (13.931)
3.025 1.526 1.761 3.286
(410) (255) - 255)
(11.700) 3424 653 4077
258 (1.937) (424) (2.361)
(11.442) 1487 229 1.716
(11.253) 2.068 229 2297
(189) (581) . (581)
(11.442) 1487 229 1.716
120 (145) (12) (157)
(47) (522) (522)
260 375 375
333 (201) (12) (304)
(11.109) 1.105 217 1412
(10.820) 1.776 217 1.993
(189) (581) - (581)
(11.109) 1.195 217 1412
(0,2229) 0,0408 0,0045 0,0453
(0,2223) 0,0405 0,0045 0,0450

In the discontinued operations of the comparative period 1/1 — 31/12/2011, the interruption of collaboration with SAMSUNG Electonics on
31/12/2010 is presented. There are no reasons to continue to present such disclosures in the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the period

1/1-31/12/2012.

The accompanying notes on pages 39 to 93 are an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income (Separate) for the period
1/1to31/12/2012and1/1t031/12/2011

(In thousands of Euro, unless otherwise stated)

COMPANY
Note 1/1-31/12/2012  1/1-31/12/2011%
Revenue 5,29 3.250 790
Cost of Goods Sold 5, 29 (2.480) (494)
Gross Profit/(Loss) 760 296
Other operating income 6 459 468
Distribution expenses 6 - -
Administrative expenses 6 (2.080) (1.369)
Other operating expenses 6 (14) (22)
Operating Profit / (Loss) (874) (627)
Total finance cost 6 (3) (4)
Total finance income 6 30 162
(Expense)/income from associate compa 27 - -
Profit / (Loss) before Tax (847) (469)
Income tax 22 88 (85)
Net Income/Loss (A) (759) (554)
Comprehensive Income/lLosses after Tax (B) 20 (14)
Total Comprehensive Income/(Losses) after tax (739) (569)

(AY+(B)

* The data for the period 1/1 -31/12/2011 have been reclassified to be comparable with the figures of corresponding period of 2012 (Note 29)

The accompanying notes on pages 39 to 93 are an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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Statement of Changes in Equity (Consolidated)
for the period 1/1t031/12/2012and 1/1t031/12/2011

(In thousands of Euro, unless otherwise stated)

(1 33w
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The accompanying notes on pages 39 to 93 are an integral part of Financial Statements.
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Statement of Changes in Equi Separate
for the period 1/1to 31/12/2012and 1/1to 31/12/2011

(In thousands of Euro, unless otherwise stated)

sunCuptal | MU | R Omouns || BRI ToulEty

Balanca at 1.1. 201 50,953 12322 A (858) 120961 106737
Total comprehensive ncomed(loss) for the penod

Proft or loss 0 0 0 0 (554) (554)
Other comprehensive incomedoss 0 0] (1 0 2 (14)
Lﬂwmmdlosmmwiodm 0 0 (1 0 (552) 1560)
Transactions with shareholcers, recorded directy in squity

Published Shares 38 0 (39) 0 0 0
Purchases of own shares 0 0 0 (1.140) 0 (1.140)
SOP Reserve 0 0 106 0 53 18
Total transactions with shareholders » 0 L] (1,140) 58 (681)
Balanca 2131.12. 2011 50662 1232 .21 {1.596) 11597 104.187
Balancaat1,1. 2012 50,992 12322 31214 (1.99%) .57 104.187
Total compraransive ncomaloss) for the pariod

Profit or loss 0 0 0 0 (759) (759)
Oer comprehensive incomedoss 0 0 0 0 20 20
mmm ncomadoss for the pariod afier 0 0 0 0 (78) )
Transactiors with snarencicers recorded direct In equty

Purchases of own shares 0 0 0 (85) 0 (85)
SOP Reserve 0 0 (288) 0 310 2
ool ransactions h sharehcides 0 o o ®) N (6)
Balanos 2t 31.12. 2012 50,662 1232 30,686 (2.083) 11168 103.385

The accompanying notes on pages 39 to 93 are an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows (Consolidated and Separate)

for the period 1/1to0 31/12/2012and 1/1to 31/12/2011

(In thousands of Euro, unless otherwise stated)
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The accompanying notes on pages 39 to 93 are an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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Notes to the annual financial statements (consolidated and

separate) as of Dec 31, 2012 and for the year then ended

1. Corporate information
1.1 General Information

FOURLIS HOLDINGS S.A. with the common use title of FOURLIS SA (hereinafter the Company) was
incorporated in 1950 as A. FOURLIS AND CO., and from 1966 operated as FOURLIS BROS S.A.
(Government Gazette, AE and EPE issue 618/ 13.6.1966). It was renamed to FOURLIS HOLDING S.A.
by a decision of an Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting on 10/3/2000, which was approved by
decision K2 - 3792/ 25.04.2000 of the Ministry of Development. The Shareholders’ Meeting also
approved the conversion of the Company to a holding company and thus also approved the change in

its scope.

The head of the Company is located at 340 Kifissias Avenue, N. Pshychiko 3™ floor. It is registered in
the Companies Registry of the Ministry of Development with registration number 13110/06/B/86/01.

The Company is listed in the Athens Stock Exchange since April 1988.

The Company’s term, in accordance with its Articles of Association, was originally set for 30 years. In
accordance with a decision of the Extraordinary Meeting of the Shareholders on 19/2/1988, the term

was extended for a further 30 years i.e. to 2026.

The current Board of Directors of the parent company is as follows:

—

Vassilis St. Fourlis, Chairman, executive member

Dafni A. Fourlis, Vice Chairman, executive member
Apostolos D. Petalas, CEO, executive member

Ioannis P. Lioupis, executive member

Lyda St. Fourlis, executive member

Ioannis Ev. Brebos, non executive member

Eftihios Th. Vassilakis, independent non executive member

Ioannis K. Papaioannou, independent non executive member

w X N o Uk WD

Ioannis Ath. Kostopoulos independent non executive member

The total number of employees of the Group as at the end of current and previous year was at 3.531
and 3.512 respectively while the total number of employees of the Company on 31/12/2012 was 58
and on 31/12/2011 was 3.

1.2 Activities

The Company’s activities are the investment in domestic and foreign companies of all types. The
39
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Company also provides general administration financial management and information technology
services. In 2012 the Group centralized support services for the Group Companies in Greece, mainly in

the areas of IT, HR, financial planning and controlling, treasury and social responsibility.
The Financial Statements include the Company and its subsidiaries (the Group) as presented below:

Consolidation

Name Location % Holding Method
HOUSEMARKET SA Athens 100,00 Full
FOURLIS TRADE SA Athens 100,00 Full
INTERSPORT ATHLETICS SA Athens 100,00 Full
SERVICE ONE SA* Athens 99,94 Full
TRADE LOGISTICS SA* Athens 100,00 Full
RENTIS SA* Athens 100,00 Full
GENCO TRADE SRL Bucharest, Romania 41,15 Full
GENCO TRADE SRL* Bucharest, Romania 58,85 Full
GENCO BULGARIA EOOD* Sofia, Bulgaria 100,00 Full
HOUSE MARKET BULGARIA AD* Sofia, Bulgaria 100,00 Full
HM HOUSEMARKET (CYPRUS) LTD* Nicosia, Cyprus 100,00 Full
INTERSPORT ATHLETICS (CYPRUS) LTD* Nicosia, Cyprus 100,00 Full
WYLDES LIMITED LTD* Nicosia, Cyprus 100,00 Full
INTERSPORT ATLETIK MAGAZACILIK VE DIS Istanbul, Turkey 100,00 Full

TICARET A.S.*
* Companies in which FOURLIS HOLDINGS S.A. has an indirect participation

Also in Consolidated Financial Statements the below mentioned related companies are included.

Company Location % Holding Consolidation

Method
SPEEDEX SA Athens 49,55%  Net equity

* Companies in which FOURLIS HOLDINGS S.A. has an indirect participation
Shareholding ratios for subsidiaries have changed since prior reporting period due to:

e Acquisition by subsidiary INTERSPORT ATHLETICS S.A. of the percentage of minority interest
(25%) of the company INTERSPORT ATLETIK MAGAZACILIK VE DIS TICARET A.S. on 5/9/2012.

¢ Under the resolution No EM 16411 — 2/7/2012 of the Prefecture of Northern Sector of Athens, the
merger of FOURLIS TRADE S.A. and PRIME TELECOM S.A. by absorption of the last was approved
in accordance with the provisions of Articles 69 — 77a of L. 2190/1920 and the provisions of the L.
1297/1972. No changes resulted to the financial figures of the Group by the absorption.

e Under the 17/4/2012 Board of Directors Resolution of HOUSEMARKET S.A. and BITA TRITI S.A.
the merger of BITA TRITI S.A. by HOUSEMARKET S.A. was decided in accordance with law
2166/1993 and 30/4/2012 was set as the modification date. The contract of merger has been

published and the merger completed on 27/12/2012. No changes resulted to the financial figures
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of the Group by the absorption.

Participation of the subsidiary INTERSPORT ATHLETICS S.A. to capital increase of the subsidiary
GENCO TRADE SRL, which was completed in July 2012.

During the year 2012 the following share capital increases realised in cash:

Increase of the share capital of the subsidiary INTERSPORT ATHLETICS S.A. with the amount of
euros 1.994.039,00, by issuing 67.940 new common nominal shares with vote, with nominal price
euros 29,35 per share, according to the resolution of the General Assembly of INTERSPORT
ATHLETICS S.A. 23/8.2.2012. The share capital increase was totally covered by the shareholder
FOURLIS HOLDINGS S.A.

Increase of the share capital of the subsidiary GENCO BULGARIA EOOD with the amount of
BGN 3.900.000,00 by issuing 390.000 new common nominal shares with vote with nominal price
BGN 10,00 per share, according to the resolution of the Board of Directors of INTERSPORT
ATHLETICS S.A. 252/8.2.2012. INTERSPORT ATHLETICS SA participated in the share capital
increase according to the resolution of the Board of Directors of INTERSPORT ATHLETICS SA.

Increase of the share capital of the subsidiary RENTIS S.A. with the amount of euros 900.000,00,
by issuing 900.000 new common nominal shares with vote, with nominal price euro 1,00 per share,
according to the resolutions 16/6.4.2012, 17/14.6.2012 and 18/14.9.2012 of General Assembly of
RENTIS S.A. The share capital increase was totally covered by the shareholder, H.M.
HOUSEMARKET (CYPRUS) LIMITED.

Increase of the share capital of FOURLIS TRADE SA with the amount of euros 133.677,58, by the
capitalization of the contributed equity of the merged company under the name “PRIME OFFICE
AUTOMATION INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AND TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES & SYSTEMS
S.A.” by issuing 215.609 new common nominal shares with a nominal value of euro 0,62 per share.
Amount of euros 99.180,14 was credited to the account "Difference from share premium” resulting
from the merge. The merge and subsequent increase of the share capital held on 14/6/2012 by the
resolutions of the General Assembly of the merging companies and under the resolution on
2/7/2012 of Prefecture of Northern Sector of Athens.

Increase of the share capital of GENCO TRADE SRL with the amount of RON 29.730.415,00, by
issuing 7.150 new common nominal shares with a nominal value of RON 4.158,10 per share,
according to the resolutions on 28/5/2012 and 26/11/2012 of FOURLIS HOLDINGS S.A. The share
capital increase was totally covered by the company INTERSPORT ATHLETICS S.A., according to
the resolutions on 1/6/2012, 2/7/2012 and 10/12/2012 of Board of Directors and was completed in
2012.

Increase of the share capital of the subsidiary INTERSPORT ATLETIK MAGAZACILIK VE DIS
TICARET A.S. with the amount of TL 18.850.000,00, by issuing 18.850.000 new common nominal
shares with vote, with nominal price TL 1,00 per share, according to the resolution on 10/12/2012
of Board of Directors of INTERSPORT ATHLETICS S.A. and to the resolution on 22/12/2012 of
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General Assembly of INTERSPORT ATLETIK MAGAZACILIK VE DIS TICARET A.S. Note that before
and for the purpose of exercising the option of the share holder to participate in the share capital
increase of INTERSPORT ATHLETICS SA was paid at an earlier time the amount of TL
11.525.001,00 and, following that decision to increase the share capital of INTERSPORT ATLETIK
MAGAZACILIK VE DIS TICARET A.S., was paid additional amount of TL 7.324.999,00.

e Increases of the share capital of the subsidiary WYLDES LTD with the amount of euros 935,00, plus
the amount of euros 9.349.065,00 as premium, by issuing 935 new common nominal shares with
vote, with nominal price euro 1,00 per share and at the acquisition price of euros 10.000,00 per
share. HOUSEMARKET S.A. participated in the share capital increases according to the resolutions of
the Board of Directors’ of HOUSEMARKET S.A. 275/3.1.2012, 276/7.2.2012, 279/20.3.2012,
281/17.4.2012, 282/8.5.2012 285/29.6.2012 and 292/6.12.2012.

2. Basis of presentation of the Financial Statements
2.1. Basis of preparation

The accompanying Financial Statements consist of the separate financial statements of the parent
Company and the consolidated financial statements of the Group and have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as adopted by the European
Union. The Board of Directors approved the accompanying financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2012 on February 25, 2013. These financial statements are subject to the approval of

the General Assembly of the Company’s shareholders.

The accompanying separate and consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis, except for certain data of Assets and Liabilities (investment properties and
derivative financial instruments) that have been measured at fair value, and assuming that the

Company and its subsidiaries will continue as a going concern.

All amounts are presented in thousands of Euro, unless otherwise stated and any differentiations in

sums are due to rounding.

2.2. Significant accounting judgments and estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results may differ from those estimates. Estimates are
based on management’s previous experience including expectations of future events under normal
conditions. The aforementioned judgments, estimates and assumptions are periodically re - assessed

in order to be in line with current available data and reflect current risks.

When applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgments,

estimates and assumptions that may have a significant impact on the items reported in the financial
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statements:
Estimates:

o Recognition of Deferred Tax assets: deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences
and the carry forward unused tax losses can be utilised. The recognition of deferred tax assets
requires significant judgments and estimates to be made in relation to the future activities and

prospects of the Group companies and as to the level and timing of future taxable profits.

e Fair Values of investment properties: the Group carries its investment properties at fair values as
determined by independent appraising firms. The fair values of investment properties are
assessed on an annual basis. The determination of the fair values of properties requires
management to make assumptions with respect to the market rental rates for similar properties,

sales comparables, capitalization and yield rates, and expectations on future rental income.

o Impairment test of goodwill: goodwill is tested for impairment on an annual basis. Such
impairment testing requires judgements to be made with respect to the determination of cash
generating units and the allocation of goodwill to such cash generating units. Significant
estimates and assumptions are made when determining the recoverable amount and with respect
to the expected future cash flows of the cash generating unit, discount and growth rates.

Further details are provided in Note 9.

o Impairment test of investments in subsidiaries: at each reporting date, the Parent Company
examines whether there are impairment indicators in relation to its investments in subsidiaries.
Such assessment requires management to make significant judgements with respect to the
existence of internal or external factors and the extent to which they affect the recoverable
amount of these investments. If impairment indicators exist, the Company determines the
recoverable amount of these investments. The determination of the recoverable amount requires
estimates to be made with respect to the expected future cash flows of the investment, the
business plans of the subsidiaries, and the determination of the applicable discount and growth

rates. Further details are provided in Note 10.

o Useful lives of property plant and equipment: Management makes estimates when determining
the useful lives of depreciable assets. Such estimates are periodically reviewed. The useful lives

estimated and applied are discussed in Note 3.7.

e  Post - retirement benefits to personnel: post - retirement obligations are determined using
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions which may differ
from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of a discount rate,
future salary increases, mortality rates and turnover rates. Due to the complexity of the valuation
and the underlying assumptions included therein, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to
changes in these assumptions. Actuarial gains and losses that result from the difference among
the actuarial assumptions are recognized directly in Equity. Such actuarial assumptions are
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periodically reviewed by management. Further details are provided in Note 18.
Judgments:

e Provisions for impaired receivables: In the subsidiaries of the Segment of Wholesale Trading of
Electrical Equipment the provision of impaired receivables is based on the historical data of
receivables of each period and the ratio of bad debt provision is applied on the total revenues.

Further details are provided in Note 12.

e Provisions for slow moving goods: Inventory turnover ratio is tested regularly and provisions are

made for the slow moving goods. Further details are provided in Note 11.

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the following accounting principles:

3.1. Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise of the financial statements of the Company and all
subsidiaries controlled by the Company directly or indirectly. Control exists when the parent company
has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from

its activities.

The subsidiaries’ financial statements are prepared as of the same reporting date and using the same
accounting policies as the parent company. Intra - group transactions (including investments in related
companies), balances and unrealized gains are eliminated. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date that control commences and cease to be consolidated from the date that control is transferred
out of the Group. Losses within a subsidiary are attributed to the non - controlling interest even if that
results in a deficit balance. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of
control, is accounted for as an equity transaction. The financial results of subsidiaries, that are
acquired or sold within the year, are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income

from or up to the date of acquisition or sale, respectively.

Certain of the above - mentioned requirements were applied on a prospective basis. The following

differences, however, are carried forward in certain instances from the previous basis of consolidation:

e Acquisitions of non - controlling interests, prior to January 1, 2010, were accounted for using the
parent entity extension method, whereby, the difference between the consideration and the book

value of the share of net assets acquired were recognised as goodwill.

e Losses incurred by the Group were attributed to the non - controlling interest until the balance
was reduced to nil. Any further excess losses were attributed to the parent, unless the non -

controlling interest had a binding obligation to cover these.

3.2. Business Combinations and Goodwill

Business Combination is a transaction or another event during which an acquirer takes over control of

44
Annual Financial Report for the perfod 1/1/2012 to 31/12/2012



FOURLIS

emnmI Ao frarriaewn

one or more businesses. A Business is a combination of activities and assets that can be leaded and

managed in order to return profits directly to its owners.

If the acquired assets do not compose a business, the transaction or any other fact are accounted as
an acquisition of an asset and the acquisition cost is allocated among assets and liabilities based on

the relative fair values during the acquisition date.

Business Combination is accounted for using acquisition method. The cost of acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair value of the assets contributed, the shares issued and the liabilities assumed at
the transaction date, plus the amount of any non - controlling interest in the acquiree. For each
business combination, the acquirer measures the non - controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net asset. Acquisition costs are

expensed when incurred.

If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair values of the net identifiable assets acquired, the

difference is recorded directly to the income statement.

Goodwill arising from subsidiaries’ acquisitions is recorded as an intangible asset. Goodwill is not
amortized but at least annually is subject to impairment test. As a result, after initial recognition,
goodwill is measured at cost, less any impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each cash
generating unit that is expected to benefit from the combination. The impairment test is performed by
comparing the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to its carrying value including the
allocated goodwill. The recoverable amount is the higher of the fair value less costs to sell and the
value in use. The value in use is determined via a discounted cash flow analysis. Impairment losses

relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

Gains or losses arising from the disposal of subsidiaries are determined after taking into account the

goodwill allocated to the disposed unit.

3.3 Investments in subsidiaries

In the separate financial statements of the Parent Company, investments in subsidiaries are accounted
for at cost, less any impairment in value. Impairment tests are carried out when there are clear

indicators of impairment, in accordance with IAS 36 "Impairment of Assets".

3.4 Investments in associates

Associates are those entities, in which the Group has significant influence but which are neither a
subsidiary nor a joint venture of the Group. A percentage holding up to 50% implies significant
influence. Such percentage holding indicates that company is an associate. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method based on which the investment is carried at cost plus post-
acquisition changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the associate, less provisions for any

impairment in value. Goodwill arising upon the acquisition of associates is included in the value of
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investment, while any negative goodwill is recorded in the income statement upon acquisition.

The Group’s share in the gains or losses of associates after acquisition is recognized in the statement
of comprehensive income, while post - acquisition movements in reserves are recognized directly in

rESErves.

In applying the equity method of accounting, the Group appropriately adjusts the financial statements
of those associates who are not applying IFRS so as to comply with IFRS and be uniform with the
accounting policies of the Group. Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the associates. Unrealised losses are

eliminated, unless the transaction provides evidence of impairment of the transferred asset.

When the Group'’s participation to the associate’s losses equals or exceeds its interest in an associate,
including any other bad debts, the Group does not recognize further losses, unless it has any liabilities

or made payments on behalf of the associate and generally those arising from the ownership status.

In the separate financial statements of the Parent Company, investments in associates are accounted

for at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
3.5 Segment information
The Board of Directors of the Company is the chief operating decision maker and monitors internal

financial reporting information in order to evaluate the performance of the Company and the Group

and to take decisions about resource allocation.

Management has defined its segments based on these internal reports according to IFRS 8. The
operating segments of FOURLIS HOLDINGS S.A. are defined as those business segments where the

Group is active and on which the internal information system of the Group is based.
For the categorization by business segment, the following has been taken into account:

e the nature of products and services,

o the quantitative limitations, required by IFRS 8.
According to the aforementioned, the Group presents information by operating segment as follows:

e  Retail Trading of Home Furniture and Household Goods (IKEA stores).
¢ Retail Trading of Sporting Goods (INTERSPORT stores).

e Retail Trading of Fashion Activity (NEW LOOK stores).

¢  Wholesale Trading of Electrical Equipment.

FOURLIS Group provides to the users of financial statements additional information by geographical

segment.

3.6 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional currency and reporting currency
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The companies of the Group maintain their books in the currency of the financial environment in which
each company operates (functional currency). The consolidated financial statements are presented in

Euro’s which is the functional currency of the parent company.

(b) Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are converted to the functional currency according to the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the date of the transaction. Foreign exchange differences arising on
translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date
are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income. Foreign exchange differences on non-
monetary items carried at fair value are considered as part of the fair value of those items and are

recorded together with the fair value adjustments.

(c) Foreign Group Companies

Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using the functional currency. The translation of the financial
statements of the Group’s companies which use a different functional currency from the parent

company is performed as follows:

e Assets and liabilities are translated to Euro at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the reporting
date.

e  Equity is translated at historic rates.

e Income and expenses are translated using the average foreign exchange rate of the period and
on an annual base according to the average foreign exchange rate of the last twelve (12)

months.

e The resulting foreign exchange differences (gains/losses) are recognized in other comprehensive

income and are transferred to the statement of income when the subsidiary is sold.

Goodwill and adjustments to fair values upon an acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and are translated at the closing rate of the date of the

Statement of Financial Position.

3.7 Property, plant and equipment

The Group decided to change its accounting policy in 2011 from a revaluation to a cost model for the

owner - occupied properties.

The own - use properties are exclusively designed and used for the commercial operation of the
Group’s companies and their value is related to their operational use. Therefore their valuation
according to the cost model gives more relevant information rather than the revaluation method as

the latter may fluctuate due to conditions which are not directly related to the Group’s core operations.

Property, plant and equipment are measured, by category, as follows:
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e All categories of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation

and any impairment losses.

e  Cost includes all directly attributable costs for the acquisition of the items of property, plant and
equipment. These costs include borrowing costs of loans drawn to finance the acquisition or
construction of assets which are capitalized until the date when the assets are ready for their

intended use.

Significant additions and improvements are recognised as part of the cost of the asset when the
recognition criteria are met. All other costs (repairs and maintenance) are recognised in the statement

of comprehensive income as an expense as incurred.

Upon disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment, the difference between the consideration
received and the carrying value is recorded as a gain or loss in the statement of comprehensive

income.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight - line basis over the estimated useful economic life of the

assets. Useful lives are reviewed on an annual basis.

The estimated useful lives of the Group’s property plant and equipment, except of the land that is not

depreciated, are as follows:

Category Useful life

Buildings - Building installations (owned premises) 10 - 40 years
Buildings on third party land 10 — 36 years
Machinery and equipment 9 - 10 years
Motor vehicles 6 - 9 years
Miscellaneous equipment 4 - 10 years

Owner - occupied buildings or buildings whose use has not yet been determined and which are under
construction are recorded at cost less any impairment losses. This cost includes professional
compensations and borrowing costs. The depreciation of that owner - occupied buildings begins from

the time the buildings are ready for use.

3.8 Investment property

Investment property is measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment property is stated at fair value, which is evaluated annually. The carrying
value of investment property reflects the market conditions at the reporting date. Gains or losses

arising from changes in the fair values of investment property fair value are recognized in the

Statement of comprehensive income.

3.9 Intangible assets

The intangible assets of the Group (excluding goodwill) are depreciated over their useful life.
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« Royalties

Trademarks and licenses are valued at cost less amortization. Amortization is charged to the statement
of comprehensive income on a straight - line basis over the estimated useful lives, which have been

determined from 5 to 20 years.

o Software - Other intangible assets

Software licenses are valued at cost less amortization. Amortization is charged on a straight - line

basis over the estimated useful lives and the depreciation rate is 15%.

Expenditure on development and maintenance of software is expensed as incurred. Expenditure of
development activities for the production of new or substantially improved software (in - house
developments), is recognised as intangible assets when the following criteria are met: a) when a
specific asset is created, b) when it can be demonstrated that the intangible asset will generate
probable future economic benefits and c) when the expenditures of development can be measured
reliably. Such expenditures include also labour costs and an appropriate proportion of overheads. In
case of software replacement, while the old one is no longer in use, intangible asset is permanently

deleted from the Books and the net book value burdens the income statement.

Costs incurred for performing software upgrades, are capitalised and the new gross value forms the

depreciable amount.

3.10 Impairment of non - financial assets except Goodwill

The carrying amounts of the Group’s assets are reviewed for possible impairment when there is
indication that the book value can not be recovered i.e. when the book value is higher than the

recoverable amount from their use or sale.

The recoverable value is the greater of the fair value less costs to sell and the value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre - tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. If the recoverable value is less than the carrying value, then the net book

value is reduced to the recoverable value.

Impairment losses are expensed as incurred in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, except if the
asset has been revalued, then the impairment loss reduces the related revaluation reserve. An
assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exists of have decreased. If such indication exists, the
Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. When in a subsequent period, the impairment loss
should be reversed; the carrying value of the asset is increased to the level of the revised estimation
of recoverable amount. The new net book value should not exceed the net book value that would
have been determined if the impairment losses had not been accounted in previous periods. The

reversal of an impairment loss is recorded to income, except if the asset has been revalued, whereby
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the impairment loss increases the related revaluation reserve.

3.11 Financial instruments

A financial instrument consists of every agreement that creates a financial asset in a business and a
financial liability or equity instrument in another business.

The Group’s financial instruments are classified at initial recognition in the following categories based

on the substance of the agreement and the purpose for which they were acquired.

[) Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

Such financial assets, represent assets, which satisfy any of the following conditions:

e Financial assets held for trading (including derivatives that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedging relationships, those that are acquired or created in order to be sold or re -

acquired and those which form part of a portfolio of recognized financial means).

¢ Financial assets designated as at fair value through profit and loss on initial recognition.

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are carried in the statement of financial position at

fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

if) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non - derivative financial instruments with fixed or determinable payments

that are not quoted in active market. This category does not include:

e Receivables from advances for the purchase of goods or services,
e Receivables resulting from tax transactions imposed by law,

e Any item not dealt with by an agreement giving the right to an entity to collect cash or other

financial assets.

Loans and receivables are included in current liabilities/ assets, except of those whose maturity
extends beyond twelve (12) months after the reporting date and which are classified as non - current
liabilities/ assets. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less impairment. Gains and losses are
recognized in income when the loans and receivables are derecognized or impaired, as well as through

the amortization process.

i) Held - to - maturity Investments

Non - derivative financial items with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities are classified
as held - to - maturity when the Group has the intent and ability to hold to term to maturity. After
initial measurement, held - to - maturity investments are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less impairment. Gains and losses are recognized in income when the loans
and receivables are derecognized or impaired, as well as through the amortization process.
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Iv) Available - for - sale financial assets

Available for sale financial assets which are classified under this category or which cannot be classified
under any of the three preceding categories. Financial assets available for sales are valued at fair
value and the unrealised gains or losses are recognised as other comprehensive income in a reserve
under equity until the item is sold or impaired. At the date of sale or impairment, the gains or losses
are transferred to the statement of comprehensive income. Impairment losses on equity investments

are not reversed through the statement of comprehensive income.

Purchases and sales of investments are recognized on trade date, which is the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the item. Investments are initially recorded at fair value plus, in the case
of investments not at fair value through profit and loss, directly attributable transactions costs.
Investments are derecognised when the right to the cash flows of the investment expire or are
transferred and the Group has substantially transferred all the risks and rewards related to the

ownership of the investment.

The fair values of financial assets, which are traded on active markets, are determined by reference to
quoted prices. The fair value of financial assets not traded on active markets is determined by using
valuation techniques such as use of recent arms length transactions, reference to other instruments
that are substantially the same and discounted cash flow analysis. Equity instruments not traded on an
active market and classified as available for sale financial assets and whose fair value cannot be

reliably estimated are valued at acquisition cost.

3.12 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether a financial asset or group of financial assets is

impaired.
Assets carried at amortized cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables carried at amortized
cost has incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either
directly or through use of an allowance account. The amount of the loss is recognized in profit or loss.
The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If it is determined that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, the asset is included in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and that group of financial assets is collectively
assessed for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an

impairment loss is or continues to be recognized are not included in a collective assessment of
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impairment. If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognized
in the income statement, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its

amortized cost at the reversal date.
Available for sale financial assets:

For equity instruments classified as available for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below cost. Where there is evidence of
impairment, the cumulative loss - measured at the difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value - is removed from other comprehensive income and recognized in the income
statement. Impairment losses on equity investments are not reversed through the income statement.
In the case of debt instruments classified as available for sale, impairment losses are reversed through
the income statements if an increase in the fair value of the debt instrument can be objectively related

to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized in the income statement.

3.13 Inventory

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is determined by using the
weighted average method. The cost of completed products and incomplete inventory includes the
cost of direct raw materials, the direct labor cost and the general industrial expenses. The net

realizable value is the estimated sales price less any costs to sell. The cost of inventory does not

include any financial expenses.

3.14 Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and they are subsequently valuated at the
amortised cost by using the effective interest rate method, less provision for impairment.

When there is evidence of impairment of receivables, the carrying value is reduced to its recoverable
amount, which is the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the initial effective

interest rate. Then, the interest is calculated at the same rate on the impaired (new book) value.

3.15 Cash

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks and on hand, as well as short term (up to 3 months)
investments of high liquidation and low risk.

3.16 Non - current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

Non - current assets held for sale are valued at the lower of carrying value and fair value less costs to
sell.

Any subsequent increase in fair value is recorded in the statement of comprehensive income, but the
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amount recognised may not exceed the initial impairment loss. From the date that an asset is

classified as held for sale, depreciation stops being recorded on that asset.

Non - current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying value will be recovered via disposal
and not through use. This condition is valid only if the sale is probable and the asset is available for
immediate sale. Management must be committed to sell the asset which will occur either via as a
result of a contractual obligation or within one year from the date when the asset was originally

classified as available for sale.

3.17 Share Capital

Direct costs incurred for increases in share capital are recorded, net of related income taxes against
the share premium reserve. The cost of treasury shares net of any related income tax is recorded as a
reduction of equity, until these shares are sold or cancelled. Any gain or loss on sale of treasury
shares, net of direct transaction costs and any related income tax is recorded as a reserve account

under equity.

3.18 Loans

Loans are initially recorded at their fair value less any direct costs related to the transaction. After
initial recognition, they are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate

method.

Interest and related expenses on loans taken for purchase or construction of fixed assets are
capitalized. Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when the asset is ready for its intended use. In
case of borrowing specifically for the purpose of constructing or acquiring an asset, the borrowing
costs related to the loan agreement are directly capitalised. Otherwise, in order to determine the part
of the loan related with that fixed asset, a method is implemented to determine the proportion of the
capitalized interest and the proportion of the interest which will be recorded to the statement of
comprehensive income as an expense. Revenues, occurred as a result of investing part of a loan taken

for construction of a fixed asset, reduce the amount of borrowing costs capitalised.

3.19 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to mitigate the risk arising from fluctuations in interest
rates. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently measured at fair value. Any gains or losses
arising from changes in fair value on derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are taken

directly to the income statement.

The effective part of hedges that qualify for hedge accounting is recognized directly to equity if it is
related to cash flow hedges while the ineffective part is charged to the consolidated income statement,
while the non - effective part is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income. If the hedge is

related to effective fair value hedges, the gain or loss from remeasuring the derivative hedging
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instrument at fair value is recognized in profit or loss and the gain or loss on the hedged item
attributable to the hedged risk adjusts the carrying amount of the hedged item and is also recognized
in profit or loss. Under cash flow hedge accounting, when the hedged firm commitment results in the
recognition of non - financial asset or a non - financial liability, then, at the time the asset or liability is
recognized the associated gains or losses that had previously been recognized in equity are included in
the initial measurement of the acquisition cost or other carrying amount of the asset or liability. For all
other cash flow hedges, the gains or losses that are recognized in equity are transferred to the income

statement in the same year in which the hedged firm commitment affects the net profit and loss.

3.20 Current and Deferred Tax

Taxes recorded in the statement of comprehensive income include both current and deferred taxes.

Current income tax is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income, except to the extent that
it relates to items recognised directly in equity. In this case it is recognised, in a similar way, directly in
equity. Current income taxes include the current liabilities and/ or assets, to or from the tax
authorities, relating to the taxes payable on the taxable income of the period. Current taxes are
increased by any income taxes related to provisions for tax differences or additional taxes which are

imposed by the tax authorities upon audit of the unaudited tax years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates which are expected to apply in the
year where the asset or liability will be settled, taking into account the tax rates (and tax laws) that

have been enacted or are virtually applicable at the reporting date.

Deferred taxes arise on temporary differences between the recognition of assets and liabilities for tax
purposes and those for the purposes of preparation of the financial statements. Deferred tax is
calculated using the liability method on all taxable temporary differences at the reporting date,

between the tax basis and book value of assets and liabilities.

The expected tax effects of temporary tax differences are recognized either as deferred tax liabilities
or as deferred tax assets. In case of an inability to accurately measure temporary tax differences, the
initial recognition is made based on estimation of the reversal time and such estimation is reviewed

each year.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses, to the
extent that it is probable that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which the
unused tax losses and tax credits can be used or sufficient taxable deductible temporary differences
that incur in the same company and will be recovered. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date and are reduced to the extent that is unlikely that sufficient taxable income will be

generated in order to recover the deferred tax asset.
The Group sets off deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities only if:
e it has a legal right to set off current tax receivables against current tax payables and
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e deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income tax imposed by the same tax
authority.

As a result deferred tax assets and liabilities are presented on a net basis in the separate financial
statements of the Company while such items are presented separately in the consolidated accounts of

the Group.

If the deferred income tax arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than business combination, then it does not affect the neither the accounting nor the taxable profit or

loss and therefore it is not taken into account.

The tax rates in the countries that the Group is operating presented below:

Country % Income Tax/
Deferred Tax
Greece 20%
Romania 16%
Cyprus 10%
Bulgaria 10%
Turkey 20%

3.21 Employee Benefits

Employee benefits are:

a) Short term benefits

Short term benefits to employees in money or in kind are recorded as an expense as they accrue.

b) Post - retirement benefits

According to the regulations of Law 2112/ 1920 amended by the article 74 paragraph 2 of the Law
3863/2010 and completed be the Law 3899/17-12-10 article 17 paragraph 5a, the Greek subsidiaries
of the Group pay retirement compensation to their employees. Such compensation varies in relation to
the employees’ years of service and salary payable at the time of retirement and is accounted for as a
defined benefit plan. Post - retirement obligations are calculated at the present value of future
employee benefits accrued as at the end of the reporting period, based on the benefits to be earned
over their expected labor life. The above mentioned obligations are calculated based on actuarial
valuation methods and are determined using the Projected Unit Method. Net costs of the period are
included in the attached statement of comprehensive income and consist of the present value of the
employee benefits that were accrued during the current year, the interest derived from the employee
benefit obligation and the actuarial gains and losses which are recognised in full in the period in which
they occur in the comprehensive income and they are not transferred in income statement in next
periods. Full yield curve method is used for the definition of the discount interest rate in the

calculation of the present value of the employee benefits.
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c) State insurance programs

The employees of the Greek subsidiaries of the Group are covered, in terms of insurance programs,
mainly through the Social Insurance Institution (IKA) the largest Social Security Organization of the
private sector, which supplies pension and medical coverage. Every employee is obliged to participate
partially, through his salary, in the costs of the insurance program, while the remaining cost is covered
by the Group. Upon retirement, the pension fund is responsible to cover the obligation of pensions and
retirement benefits to the employees. As a consequence the Group does not have any other legal or
future obligation to cover future employee benefits according to this pension program. This program is
considered and accounted for as a defined contribution plan whereby the accrued social security

contributions are recorded as an expense in the financial period in which they are incurred.

d) Private insurance programs

Every full time employee of the Group belonging to the management team, according to the internal
company policy, is covered by a private insurance pension and other benefits program. The Group
covers, the contract defined fees, while the financial management of the program is performed by the
insurance company. This program is considered and accounted for as a defined contribution plan
whereby the accrued cost of the insurance fees is recorded as expense in the period in which they are

incurred.

e) Stock option plan

On June 30" 2008 the General Assembly of Shareholders approved the adoption of a Stock Option
Plan for its executives and the executives of its subsidiaries and affiliated companies, according to
paragraph 5 of Article 42e of Law 2190/ 1920.

With this decision, the General Assembly of Shareholders of FOURLIS HOLDING S.A. intends to attract,
retain and incentivise the executives of the Company and the executives of its subsidiaries and
affiliated companies, as through the Stock Options plan, the participants have a direct equity interest
in the Company which link their performance to the Company’s future performance and the increase of

shareholder value. This program regards equity shares transactions.

A basic condition for participation in the Stock Options plan is the salaried working relationship of
executives with the Company or its subsidiaries and affiliates. The cost of equity settled transactions is
measured by reference to the fair values at the date in which they are granted and is recognized as an

expense over the period in which conditions are fullfilled with a corresponding increase in equity.

The calculation of the fair value of stock options is based on the widely accepted method of Black -
Scholes. This method takes into account the following variables: - strike price at grant date, exercise
price, the grant date, maturity dates of rights, the Expected Stock Volatility (Volatility), the Dividend
Yield, the Risk Free Rate.

3.22 Government grants
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Government grants are recognized where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognized
as deferred income and amortized over the expected useful life of the related asset. Such amortization

is presented in other income.

3.23 Contigent liabilities and Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal, contractual or constructive obligation
as a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle this obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be

made.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the present value of the

expense expected to be required to settle the liability.

Contingent liabilities and assets are not recognised in the financial statements but are disclosed unless

there is a probability of financial outflow or inflow.

3.24 Revenue and expense recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of sales of goods and provision of services, net of Value Added

Tax, discounts and returns. Inter - company revenues are eliminated.
The recognition of revenue is accounted for as follows:

e Sales of goods: Sales of goods are recognized when the Group invoices and delivers the goods to
the customers and the goods are accepted by them. Retail sales are through cash payments or
through credit cards. In these cases the income recorded is the amount received by the
customer.In the case of guarantees for returned retail sales value the returns are recorded as

incurred.

e Provision of services: The income from provision of services is recorded in the period in which the

services are provided, based on the stage of completion of the provided service.

o Interest income: Interest income is recognized proportionally in time and by using the effective
interest rate.

e  Dividends: Dividends are recorded as income when the right to collect vests which is upon the
decision of the General Assembly of Shareholders (ordinary or extraordinary). Expenses are

recognized in the statement of comprehensive income as accrued.

o Advertising costs: Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and are included in distribution

expenses.

e Borrowing costs: Underwriters costs, legal and other direct costs incurred during the issue of long
term loans are deducted from the loan balances and are recorded to the statement of

comprehensive income based on the effective interest rate method over the duration of the loan.
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Borrowing cost is recognized as an expense during the issue period, except of the case that

Group capitalizes borrowing costs according to IAS 23.

3.25 Leases

Leases in which all the risks and benefits of the property remain with the lessor are recorded as

finance leases. All the other leasing contracts are recorded as operating leases.

e Group as a Lessor: Income from operating leasing is recognised as income on a straight - line

basis over the lease term.

. Group as a Lessee: Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight - line
basis over the lease term. Leases which transfer to the Group substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership of the leased item regardless of whether there is a transfer of the
ownership title or not at the end of the lease, are classified as finance leases. The property held
under finance leases is capitalized at the inception of the lease at the lower of its fair value and
the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between the
reduction in the lease liability and the financial expenses in order to achieve a constant interest
rate on the residual financial liability. The related lease liabilities net of financial expenses are
classified as liabilities and the related financial expenses are recognized in the statement of
comprehensive income over the duration of the lease. Property, plant and equipment acquired
through a finance lease are depreciated at the lower of the assets’ useful lives and the lease

term.

3.26 Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are not offset in the financial statements unless there is a legal right of
set - off and intention for settlement of the net amount or settlement of the asset and liability

simultaneously.

3.27 Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

Financial Assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial

assets) is derecognized where:
o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired,

e the Group or the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows form the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay them in full without material delay under a “pass - through”
arrangement and either (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the assets,
or (b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but

has transferred control of the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither
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transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Groups” continuing involvement in the asset.
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that

the Group could be required to repay.
Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a

new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in profit or loss.

3.28 Earnings per share

The basic and diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing net profits after taxes with the

weighted average number of shares of each period/ year.

The weighted average number of shares arises by summing the outstanding shares into which the
share capital is divided and the rights that can be contingently exercised and are owned by the

company and subtracting the shares buy back.

3.29 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The Accounting Principles and the valuation methods used, are the ones reported under the Notes of the

Annual Financial Statements of 31/12/2011 except from the following:

¢ IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Enhanced Derecognition Disclosure

Requirements (Amendment)
e IAS 12 Income Taxes (Amended) — Recovery of Underlying Assets

The amendment clarifies the determination of deferred tax on investment property measured at
fair value. The amendment introduces a rebuttable presumption that deferred tax on investment
property measured using the fair value model in IAS 40 should be determined on the basis that
its carrying amount will be recovered through sale. Furthermore, it introduces the requirement
that deferred tax on non - depreciable assets that are measured using the revaluation model in
IAS 16 always be measured on a sale basis of the asset. The management of the Group/
Company does not expect that the adoption of this standard will have any impact on the Financial
Statements; as well the accounting policy followed has no significant difference from those

provided in the amended standard.

Standards issued but not yet effective and not early adopted. The Group is in the process of assessing
the impact of the project on the financial position or performance of the Group.
¢ IAS 1 Financial Statement Presentation (Amended) — Presentation of Items of Other
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Comprehensive Income

The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012. The
amendments to IAS 1 change the grouping of items presented in OCI. Items that could be
reclassified (or ‘recycled”) to profit or loss at a future point in time (for example, net gain on
hedge of net investment, exchange differences on translation of foreign operations, net
movement on cash flow hedges and net loss or gain on available — for - sale financial assets)
would be presented separately from items that will never be reclassified (for example, actuarial
gains and losses on defined benefit plans and revaluation of land and buildings). The amendment
affects presentation only and has no impact on the Group’s financial position or performance. This
amendment affects only the presentation and has no effect on the financial position of the
Company/ Group or in its activities. The Company and the Group does not expect that the

adaption of this standard will have any impact on the Financial Statement.
¢ IAS 19 Employee Benefits (Revised)

The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. The IASB
has issued numerous amendments to IAS 19. These range from fundamental changes such as
removing the corridor mechanism and the concept of expected returns on plan assets to simple
clarifications and re - wording. The management of the Group/ Company does not expect that the
adoption of this standard will have any impact on the Financial Statements; as well the
accounting policy followed has no significant difference from those provided in the amended

standard.
¢ IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (Revised)

The Standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. For companies
which apply IFRS as adopted by the EU, the effective date is 1 January 2014. As a consequence
of the new IFRS 11 Joint arrangements and IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, IAS
28 Investments in Associates, has been renamed IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures, and describes the application of the equity method to investments in joint ventures in

addition to associates. This amendment has not yet been endorsed by the EU.

« IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation (Amended) - Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities

The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.These
amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right to set - off”. The
amendments also clarify the application of the IAS 32 offsetting criteria to settlement systems
(such as central clearing house systems) which apply gross settlement mechanisms that are not

simultaneous. This amendment has not yet been endorsed by the EU.

e IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures (Amended) - Offsetting Financial Assets

and Financial Liabilities

The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. These
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amendments require an entity to disclose information about rights to set - off and related
arrangements (e.g. collateral agreements). The disclosures would provide users with information
that is useful in evaluating the effect of netting arrangements on an entity’s financial position.
The new disclosures are required for all recognized financial instruments that are set off in
accordance with IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation. The disclosures also apply to
recognized financial instruments that are subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement
or similar agreement, irrespective of whether they are set off in accordance with IAS 32. The
Company and the Group does not expect that the adaption of this standard will have any impact

on the Financial Statement.
e IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement

The new standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015. IFRS 9, as
issued, reflects the first phase of the IASBs work on the replacement of IAS 39 and applies to
classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities as defined in IAS 39.
The standard was initially effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013, but
amendments to IFRS 9 Mandatory Effective Date of IFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures, issued in
December 2011, moved the mandatory effective date to 1 January 2015. In subsequent phases,
the TIASB will address hedge accounting and impairment of financial assets. The adoption of the
first phase of IFRS 9 will have an effect on the classification and measurement of financial assets,
but will not have an impact on classification and measurements of financial liabilities. The Group/
Company will quantify the effect in conjunction with the other phases, when the final standard

including all phases is issued. This standard has not yet been endorsed by the EU.
o IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements

The new standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. For
companies which apply IFRS as adopted by the EU, the effective date is 1 January 2014. IFRS 10
replaces the portion of IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements that addresses the
accounting for consolidated financial statements. It also addresses the issues raised in SIC-12

Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities.

IFRS 10 establishes a single control model that applies to all entities including special purpose
entities. The changes introduced by IFRS 10 will require management to exercise significant
judgment to determine which entities are controlled and therefore are required to be consolidated
by a parent, compared with the requirements that were in IAS 27. This amendment has not yet
been endorsed by the EU.

o IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

The new standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. For
companies which apply IFRS as adopted by the EU, the effective date is 1 January 2014. IFRS 11
replaces IAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and SIC-13 Jointly - controlled Entities — Non-

monetary Contributions by Venturers. IFRS 11 removes the option to account for jointly controlled
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entities (JCEs) using proportionate consolidation. Instead, JCEs that meet the definition of a joint
venture must be accounted for using the equity method. This amendment has not yet been
endorsed by the EU.

e IFRS 12 Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities

The new standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. For
companies which apply IFRS as adopted by the EU, the effective date is 1 January 2014. IFRS 12
includes all of the disclosures that were previously in IAS 27 related to consolidated financial
statements, as well as all of the disclosures that were previously included in TIAS 31 and IAS 28.
These disclosures relate to an entity’s interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and
structured entities. A number of new disclosures are also required. This amendment has not yet

been endorsed by the EU.
e IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

The new standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. IFRS 13
establishes a single source of guidance under IFRS for all fair value measurements. IFRS 13 does
not change when an entity is required to use fair value, but rather provides guidance on how to
measure fair value under IFRS when fair value is required or permitted. This amendment has not

yet been endorsed by the EU.
¢ IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine
e The IASB has issued the Annual Improvements to IFRSs — 2009 — 2011 Cycle, which contains

amendments to its standards and the related Basis for Conclusions. The annual improvements
project provides a mechanism for making necessary, but non - urgent, amendments to IFRS. The
effective date for the amendments is for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

This project has not yet been endorsed by the EU.

- IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: This improvement clarifies the difference
between voluntary additional comparative information and the minimum required comparative

information. Generally, the minimum required comparative period is the previous period.

- IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: This improvement clarifies that major spare parts
and servicing equipment that meet the definition of property; plant and equipment are not

inventory.

- IAS 32 Financial Instruments, Presentation: This improvement clarifies that income
taxes arising from distributions to equity holders are accounted for in accordance with IAS 12

Income Taxes.

- IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting: The amendment aligns the disclosure requirements
for total segment assets with total segment liabilities in interim financial statements. This
clarification also ensures that interim disclosures are aligned with annual disclosures.

e Transition Guidance (Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12)

The guidance is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. The IASB
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4.

issued amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements
and IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities. The amendments change the transition
guidance to provide further relief from full retrospective application. The date of initial application’
in IFRS 10 is defined as ‘the beginning of the annual reporting period in which IFRS 10 is applied
for the first time’. The assessment of whether control exists is made at ‘the date of initial
application’ rather than at the beginning of the comparative period. If the control assessment is
different between IFRS 10 and IAS 27/ SIC - 12, retrospective adjustments should be determined.
However, if the control assessment is the same, no retrospective application is required. If more
than one comparative period is presented, additional relief is given to require only one period to
be restated. For the same reasons IASB has also amended IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements and IFRS
12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities to provide transition relief. This guidance has not yet
been endorsed by the EU.

Investment Entities (Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27)

The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014. The
amendment applies to a particular class of business that qualify as investment entities. The IASB
uses the term ‘investment entity’ to refer to an entity whose business purpose is to invest funds
solely for returns from capital appreciation, investment income or both. An investment entity
must also evaluate the performance of its investments on a fair value basis. Such entities could
include private equity organisations, venture capital organisations, pension funds, sovereign
wealth funds and other investment funds. Under IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements,
reporting entities were required to consolidate all investees that they control (i.e. all subsidiaries).
The Investment Entities amendment provides an exception to the consolidation requirements in
IFRS 10 and requires investment entities to measure particular subsidiaries at fair value through
profit or loss, rather than consolidate them. The amendment also sets out disclosure

requirements for investment entities. This amendment has not yet been endorsed by the EU.

Financial Risk Management

The Group is exposed to financial risks such as foreign exchange risk, credit risk, interest rate risk and

liquidity risk. Risk management is handled by the portfolio management department, which operates

according to specific rules set by the Board of Directors. The portfolio management department

identifies and hedges financial risks in cooperation with the departments that is exposed to these risks.

The Board of Directors provides written instructions and guidance on general risk management as well

as specific guidance for managing specific types of risks such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate

risk, liquidity risk and credit risk.

5.

Segment Information

The Group is active on the following four operating segments:

Retail Trading of Home Furniture and Households Goods (IKEA stores).
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e  Retail Trading of Sporting Goods (INTERSPORT stores).

e Retail Trading of Fashion Activity (NEW LOOK stores).

¢  Wholesale Trading of Electrical Equipment.

Therefore the main financial interest is concentrated on the business classification of the Group’s

activities, where the various economic environments constitute different risks and rewards. The

Group's activities comprise mainly one geographical area, that of the wider European region, primarily

in Greece along with countries of Southeastern Europe (Romania, Bulgaria, Cyprus and Turkey).

The Group's sales revenue in 2012 arise 71% from activities in Greece (79% in 2011) with the

remaining 29% arising from the other countries of Southeastern Europe (21% in 2011). Revenue of

the Company concern intrasegment transactions and are eliminated at the Consolidated Financial

Statements. Historically, the consumers’ demand for the Group products increases during the last four

months of the year.

Group results by operating segment for the year 2012 are analysed below:

1/1-31/12/2012

Furniture Sporting Retail Electrical FOURLIS Consoli Total
and Goods Fashion Equipment HOLDINGS dation
Ho;:sl;:ld Activity Entries
Ravenus 286480 106318 3776 24065 3250 364 420254
Cost of Goods Sold 183.180) 55.935 2055 837 {2.480) 24%0 260 541)
Gross Profit{Loss) 103.300 50.383 1.721 4654 760 (1.145) 158.713
Other operating income 7955 1177 48 2027 458 57 11085
Distribufion sxpenses {91.583) (42.206) (2790 4798 0 oo 40.382)
Adminsiraiive sxpenses (10.479) 6.169 584 (3421 2080 2.319) {25.052)
Other operating expenses (814) 314 0 848) 4 0 {2 5881
Operating Profit/ (Loss) 8378 221 (1.603) (2343 (874) (3.041) 2.785
Toial finance cost (10.545) 3927 (452) 2175) 3 0 17102
Toizl finance income 611 705 30 1630 K 0 3025
{ Expe@e"ﬂnme from associaie 41 0 0 0 0 0 (44
companies
Profit/ (Loss) bafors Tax (1.965) {851) (2.007) (2.828) (847) (3.041) (11.700}
Profit/ (Loss) sfter Tax (2.285) (1.001) (1.767) (3.167) (758) (2453) (11442)
Deprecigtion‘Amoriissiion 9720 3876 212 405 45 3041 17.300
Group results by operating segment for the year 2011 are analysed below:
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1/1-31/12/2011

Furniture Sporting Retail Electrical FOURLIS Consoli Total Disconti Consolida Total Total
and Goods Fashion Equipmen HOLDING dation Continui nued tion Disconti Group
Household Activity t S Entries ng operatio Entries nued
Goods Operatio ns operati
ns ons
Rewnys 31366t 80.751 1228 N4 730 8% 435033 2216 0 216 £8M
Cost of Goods Soid 152 056) 4734 (313) 21488 tey 84 284N @6% 0 2652) (266.062
Gross ProfRi{Loss) 121,803 43397 6 7011 i W2 1neB 43 0 e
Cher operafing incoma 2044 818 1 R 463 701 3616 2888 0 2868 £485
Distrbution expenses (87808)  (37.007) (582) (3.443 0 497 (1050 23] 0 25) (1087
Admnistratve sxpersas 18 730) 5632! {380 2 85¢ (1.8 45 23 543 (1262 0 1292 (30841
Other operating 2xpenses (818} T (1 3% &) A (184 13 0 13 2028
Operating Profit | (Loss) 1544 87 (85€) 634) (€27) (152) 4223 T4 0 T4 48M
Total finanoe cost 7546) (2143 (124) 35 (4 0 12.069) (1.861 0 (186 (13831)
Total finance income 634 K, 4 B 182 0 156 1764 0 1,751 %
e e e 0 0 ; 0 - ; 0 -
companes
Profit / {Loss) befors Tax 7847 (183 () (1132) (483) (152) 4N 633 0 am
Profit/ (Loss) fter Tex 113 (1884 (€2) (1.334) (534) (152 1487 8 0 28 178
Degpracisbon/Amorbsation R 342 A a4 41 132 12522 0 0 0 1232

The discontinued operations are only related to the Wholesale Trading of Electrical Equipment

segment.

The breakdown structure of assets and liabilities as of 31/12/2012 and 31/12/2011 are as below:

Furniture and

q q vl Electrical FOURLIS Consolidation
Ho;:z::ld Sporting Goods  Fashion Activity Equipment HOLDINGS Entries Total Group
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Toidl &sss FTES W R§2 Bl 387 253 B 823 1B WGSE (e85 W) 0 ST SN
Toid Ui W U 5 N 5255 iTE % 28 158 HB gne 13 X8 IS
Transactions between the Group companies are based in the arm’s length principle.
6. Analysis of expenses and other operating income
(a) The expenses are presented in the financial statements as follows:
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Distribution expenses 140,382 130,827 0 0
Administrative expenses 25062 30.841 2.080 1,369
Other operating expenses 2.588 2,028 14 2
Expenses in Cost of Goods Sold 5,015 6.013 2,400 494
Total 173.037 160.708 4.584 1,885

The main categories of expenses are analysed below:

Payroll expenses 63.888 67.105 3.149 817
Third party services 60.388 56.806 575 338
Taxes-duties 2.115 214 8 4
Depreciation/Amortisation 17.300 12.962 46 41
Miscellaneous expenses 29.346 30.672 806 685
Total 173.037 169.708 4.584 1,885

Various expenses include mainly advertising, goods transportation expenses during the reporting

period.

Payroll expenses are analyzed as follows:

Salanes and wages 49697 51717 201 45
Social securty contrbutions 11848 12101 &0 Q
Miscelaneous grants 243 1286 499 0
Total £3.488 §7.105 1149 817

(b) Other operating income is analysed as follows:

Co-advertisement income 6.364 411 0 0
Recycing income 397 284 0 o
Subsides Law 32060/04 426 438 0 o
Management Fees 0 0 0 0
Revenue from non-used provisions 736 1.072 34 39
Proceeds from Sale of Investments o 0 0 0
Fixed Assets Gain 239 () o 0
Income from provisions of previous o

years o o 0
Other income 2.932 4.273 425 428
Total 11.085 6.485 459 468
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Figures of 2012 include co—advertisement income € 6,0 million of a subsidiary.

Other income for the period 2011 includes income from Samsung Electronics discontinuation € 2,3

million.

(c) Net Financial Results are analyzed as follows:

GROUP COMPANY
€012 201 €012 2011

Ineres! - expanses (11 876 7 688 0 "
Foreign exchange diferences (expense) -realzed- 2 065 850 0 0
Other bank expenses 1 161 194,

Total finance cost 17.102) {13.831) (3) 4
Interest and related income 824 1.073 29 38
Foreign exchange dfferences (income) -rasleed. 2201 2.213 1 123
Total finance income 3025 3286 0 162
Financal Resutt 14.076) (10.644) 27 158

(d) The expenses/ income from associate companies for the years 2012 and 2011 refer to the share of

losses with the associate company VYNER LTD which is incorporated in the consolidated financial

statements by applying the equity method of accounting.

7. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are analyzed as follows:
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GROUP
Machiery-rstala Fumture and . Total of Properyy
Land g md“ 3‘9 ;’ tors-Mscellaneo Mok vehicdes  mscellansous Ca ;' i plant and
8 oipret oqupment T aqipmen

Auipaasion cos! Dedre change of pficy o 31122011 82519 20 5415 4878 B 163 B
Efiect fom change of policy 31.12.2011 (2.184) (305%) 0 0 0 0 {52,540
Aciptsison cost aher e p of pokcy it
iam e 60365 109,756 5418 4518 3157 163 38,764
Acouruiated dopreciaien o the change of policy
12201 0 (38 45) (2630} 2412 {140 580) 0 (B4.106)
Nt ook value sher the changs of poley &1
iam 50385 16130 276 2486 1158 163 LS
EREXIRV¥.1)
Aditions i 377 (- n 75 1716 am
Orhi cranges in aoguisisen cost () ! 73 13 (1012 (78] (4IM)
Revelusion al far vahe 0 [ 0 0 0 0 0
Degreditniamanisinion 0 % 140) M2 [7) (4.602) 0 (138%)
Othir Depreciaton changes 0 (500 67 fi 7] 0 465
Restand Depracaton ) ] 0 0 [l 0 0
Actpasiion cost ot 31122012 50362 2438 i 48 A0 1800 316551
Acoumyiated depreciaton # 31122012 ) (47006) (3.065) (2578) (24300} 0 {114%6)
Nert book viue &t 31.122012 60362 157210 UM 200 15520 1800 2047

Additions in the Property, Plant and Equipment for the period refer to the purchase of equipment for
the retail segment (new and existing) of Furniture and Household Goods, Sporting Goods and Fashion
Activity.

IKEA Pick up Point in Rhodes Island began its operations in November 2012.

Most considerable additions in property, plant and equipment refer to:

a) property, plant and buildings installations of amount € 0,5 million for IKEA stores, € 2,7 million
for INTERSPORT stores and € 0,6 million for NEW LOOK stores,

b) machinery — installations, furniture and miscellaneous equipment of amount € 2,7 million for
IKEA stores, € 1,6 million for INTERSPORT stores and € 0,5 million for NEW LOOK stores.

Part of property that was not in use in the current year, management assesed that its value has been
impaired and recorded in the statement of Comprehensive Income an impairment loss amounting to €

1,7 million, which is included in depreciation/amortization of Administrative expenses.

Property Plant and Equipment also includes a subsidiaries’ finance leasing amounted at € 28.371
thousand (31/12/2011: € 28.573 thousand).

The average interest rate of the financial lease was 6,12% for 2012 (2011: 4,89%). Depreciation/
Amortization of Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets of total amount € 17.300

thousand, was allocated in Cost of Sales by the amount of € 946 thousand, in Distribution Expenses by
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the amount of € 10.782 thousand and in Administrative Expenses by the amount of € 5.571 thousand.

8. Investment property

The amount of € 7,6 million concerns to a subsidiary’s plant and premises, where the subsidiary has

the real estate investments (2011: € 8,8 million).

A revaluation process of the Group’s investment properties was performed by independent appraisers

in 2012. The appraisal exercise was performed by Savills Hellas in accordance with the income

approach (discounted cash flows analysis) and following the revaluation standards prescribed by the

Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors.

As a result of the valuation, an impairment loss of € 1,2 million was charged on the investment

property, which is included in depreciation/amortization of Administrative expenses.

9. Intangible assets

Intangible assets are analyzed as follows:

GROUP

Royates Softwae Gooowl Misca'aneous Tos
Cost 31.122011 8872 7088 a8 43 288
Accumiiaied daprecistiondamontsation 31 122011 ‘& ¢ 080 0 ! 5 658
Net book velue ot 31.12.2011 6450 3008 261 4084 16.13
11-31122002
ASOToNS 95 an 1404
DRt ChANDT IN ACQUSBON COSt
O SOROMNY §MOUSFON
Oy ( FY 0 32 18
Cost 31122012 §658 754 282 4a3n H0N
Accumuiated deprecastion/amontsaton 31 122012 6L, . 0 4
Net book value 1 31 122012 6.065 270 28 I 535

Royalties include the Royalty for the use of ‘IKEA” brand nhame.

Goodwill was derived on 30/6/2004 on acquisition of an additional 43,36% of the company FOURLIS
TRADE SA. After the acquisition the company became a 100% subsidiary of FOURLIS HOLDINGS S.A.

During 2012 an impairment test on goodwill was performed in the consolidated financial statements

and there was no impairment loss.

10. Investments

Investments are as analyzes as follows:

COMPANY

COUNTRY % %o
31/12/2012
SHAREHOLDING SHAREHOLDING

31/12/2011
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Subsidiaries

GENCO TRADE SRL Romania 41,15% 6.479 100% 6.479
PRIME TELECOM SA Greece - - 7,92% 285
HOUSEMARKET SA Greece 100% 38.740 100% 38.740
FOURLIS TRADE SA Greece 100% 39.090 100% 38.806
INTERSPORT ATHLETICS

A Greece 100% 12.170 100% 10.176
Associate

SPEEDEX SA Greece 49,55% - 49,55% -
Investment

ATC SA Greece 10% 95 10 % 95
STOCK OPTION 724 707
TOTAL 97.298 95.288

During 2012 an impairment test of the investment in all subsidiaries of the Group was performed and

did not recognize any impairement loss.

The parent company had a direct shareholding of 100% of GENCO TRADE SRL until 28/5/2012. All
capital increases followed were covered 100% by the subsidiary INTERSPORT ATHLETICS SA. As a
result at the end of the fiscal year the parent company held a direct shareholding of 41,15% and
INTERSPORT ATHLETICS SA of 58.85%.

The associated companies SPEEDEX SA and VYNER LTD, an associate company of WYLDES LTD
(100% subsidiary of HOUSEMARKET SA), have been included in the consolidated financial statements
of the Group through the application of the equity method of accounting. WYLDES LTD has a 50%

participation stake in VYNER LTD.

After applying the equity method a loss of € 410 thousand was recognised in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income under “Expenses/income from associate companies" with a

corresponding decrease in the carrying value of the investments in associates.

The Summary financial information of the Associated Companies is as follows:

Country of
Company establishment
SPEEDEX SA
2012 Greece
2011 Greece
Country of
Company establishment
VYNER LTD
2012 Cyprus
2011 Cyprus

Total
Assets

13.987
16.602

Total
Assets

44.934
33.830

Total
Liabilities

19.334
20.339

Total
Liabilities

8
6.475

Income

27.271
30.099

Income

14

Profits

(Losses) Shareholding

(1.583)
18

Profits

49,553%
49,553%

(Losses) Shareholding

(730)
(601)

50,00%
50,00%

In relation to the associate company SPEEDEX SA, according to IAS 28, if the Group’s share in the
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associate’s losses equals or exceeds the carrying value of the investment, the investor does not
recognize a further loss. Such unrecognised losses amount to € 2.649 thousand for 2012 and € 1.852
thousand for 2011.

Investments in the accompanying consolidated financial statements relate to a 10% participation stake
in ATC SA, a 50% in VYNER LTD and a 49,553% in SPEEDEX SA.

Whithin the year 2012 the Group paid € 7.975 thousand to the associate VYNER LTD as participation
in the share capital increase of the latter.

11. Inventory

Inventory is analyzed as follows:

GROUP COMPANY
312012 3nz201 322012 312011

Inventory 713413 83.822 0 0
Advances for purchases of merchandise 3.354 4,750 0 0
Total 78.767 B88.573 0 0

The inventory cost of the Group which was recorded as an expense under cost of goods sold was
€253.277 thousand (2011: € 249.038 thousand). The inventory value that was written off within the
financial year was € 1.463 thousand (2011: € 859 thousand). An impairment provision for idle and
slow moving inventory has been recognised and amounts to € 886 thousand (2011: € 458 thousand).
A mortgage contract was held regarding the inventory of a subsidiary until the amount of € 25.000
thousand for the improvement of the credit terms.

12. Trade receivables

Trade receivables are analyzed as follows:

GROUP COMPANY
3122012 Nz 3nza012 3112201

Trade recevables 204839 21.802 1560 815
Cheques recenvables 2346 3551 0 0
Bad Debt Provisions (6.346) 6 784 0 0
Total 16.838 18.569 1560 315

Trade Receivables in 2012 include a customer balance of amount € 1.602 thousand (2011: € 3.426

thousand) which is greater than 9,51% of the total Trade Receivables balance.

The movement of the provision for impaired receivables for 2012 and 2011 is analyzed as follows:
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GROUP COMPANY
31122012 Jzz2011 3122012 320
Opening Balance 6.784) (7.101) 0 0
Reversal of provisions 437 567 0
Provision 0 (250)
Closing Balance (6.346) {6.784) 0 0

As at December 31, 2012 and 2011 the ageing of trade receivables is analyzed as follows:
Not due and not impaired trade  Overdue but not Iimpaired trade

Total recelvables rece 'vables
2012 16,838 16.838 0
2011 18.569 18.403 166

13. Other receivables

Other receivables are analyzed as follows:

GROUP COMPANY
31122012 Jnaron 311272012 3111272011
Debited VAT 5.900 8.464 0 53
Credit Cards recelvable 9.765 4.879 0 0
Other debtors 5.080 7.802 461 481
Total 20.754 21.145 461 534

14. Cash

Cash represents the Group’s and the Company’s cash in hand as well as bank deposits available on

demand and is analyzed as follows:

GROUP COMPANY
3122012 31122011 31122012 31220m
Cash in hand 2645 2013 0 4
Bank Deposits 30.181 54 281 2328 4912
Total 41825 56.204 2.328 4916

Bank deposits of the Group include a minimum deposit limit of € 2.000 thousand as a result of a loan

agreement of a subsidiary.

15. Share capital

As at 31 December 2011, at December 31, 2012 the share capital amounted to Euro 50.992.322
thousand, consisting of 50.992.322 shares with a par value of Euro 1 (one) each. The evolution and

the way of coverage of the share capital of the Company since its incorporation is presented in the

following table:
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TABLE OF CAPITAL EVOLUTION (amounts in euros)

Amount of increase
By
capitalization
Date of e e gl rs::zﬁls : New Share Capital Nominal
General Cash 9 shares Shares total after the value per
Meetin SEEERE LT, Payments cEERE total increase share
9 y! Difference of
share
premium
account
Founding 618/13.6.66 514.673,51 . 5.000 5.000 14.673,51 2,93
Capital
27/7/1968 930/23.8.68 - 514.673,51 5.000 10.000 29.347,03 2,93
29/11/1971 1978/20.12.71 - 58.694,06 20.000 30.000 88.041,09 2,93
27/6/1975 2233/15.10.75 - 17.608,22 6.000 36.000 105.649,30 2,93
11/10/1982 4007/11.11.82 3,00 109.461,42 37.300 73.300 215.113,72 2,93
19/2/1988 446/17.3.88 528.246,52 1.897.872,34 2.926.700 3.000.000 2.641.232,58 0,88
24/6/1989 4336/29.12.89 - 264.123,26 300.000 3.300.000 2.905.355,83 0,88
21/12/1992 228/21.1.93 - 290.535,58 330.000 3.630.000 3.195.891,42 0,88
11/6/1994 2985/17.6.94 479.383,71 3.195.891,42 4.174.500 7.804.500 6.871.166,54 0,88
27/6/1998 5395/7.7.98 - 5.496.933,24 6.243.600 14.048.100 12.368.099,78 0,88
5/3/1999 1572/22.3.99 6.648.774,76 - 7.551.900 21.600.000 19.016.874,54 0,88
23/6/2000 7051/25.7.00 3.847.395,45 - 4.370.000 25.970.000 22.864.269,99 0,88
22/6/2001 5916/11.7.01 - 3.105.730,01 - 25.970.000 25.970.000,00 1,00
21/6/2002 6897/8.7.02 - 25.970.000,00  25.970.000 51.940.000 51.940.000,00 1,00
20/6/2003  12169/4.11.03 Cance”at'°2hf:2'508° of own - 50.952.920 50.952.920,00 1,00
10/6/2011 99/19.1.11 39.402,00 - 39.402 50.992.322 50.992.322,00 1,00
Total 50.992.322 50.992.322,00 1,00
16. Reserves
The movement of the reserves is analyzed as follows:
GROUP COMPANY
31122012 3o 31212012 Jnzrzon
Statutory Reserves 14 045 14102 6686 6 686
Foregn exchange diff from Statement of Financial Position
ransl (eserves 1.974 - 0
Extraordinary Reserves 25.502 23220 23.795 23.795
SOP Reserve 505 793 505 793
Purchase of own shares 2083 1 995 1 995
IRS Reserve (634 (894 0 0
Total 35.544 33311 28903 29276

Statutory Reserve: In accordance with the provisions of Greek company law, the creation of a

statutory reserve, through the transfer of the 5% of the annual after tax profits, is mandatory up until
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the reserve reaches 1/3 of the share capital. The statutory reserve is only distributable upon

dissolution of the Company, it may however be used to set - off accumulated losses.

Tax Free Reserves: The Group has a Tax Free Reserve of € 25.502 thousand (2011: € 23.220
thousand), which was derived from sale of shares. In the case of distribution or capitalisation the

reserves will be taxed with the official tax rate.

Exhange Differences from subsidiaries accounts conversion: This reserve is comprised from the foreign
exchange differences arising from the retranslation of the financial statements of Subsidiaries which

have a different functional currency from the Group.

Hedging reserve: The hedging reserve comprises of the effective portion of the cumulative net change

in the fair value of cash flow hedging instruments (IRS).

17. Dividends

The Shareholders General Assembly dated on 15/6/2012 did not propose a dividend distribution for
the year 1/1 — 31/12/2011 taking into account the financial results of this period.

The Shareholders General Assembly dated on 10/6/2011 approved not to distribute any dividend for
the year 1/1 — 31/12/2010.

18. Employee retirement benefits
18.1 Liabilities due to termination of service

The provision for employee retirement benefits appearing in the Financial Statements is in accordance
with IAS 19 and is based on an actuarial study that was elaborated by AON Hewitt at 31 December
2012. Since January the 1% of 2011, Group changed its accounting policy regarding the defined benefit
pension program by applying the amended in June 2011 IAS 19, that requires direct recognition of the

actuarial gains and losses in Equity. Basic assumptions of the actuarial study are the following:

Assumption 2012 Assumption 2011
Average annual salary increase 1,00% 2,00%
Discount interest rate 3,30% - 3,89% 5,11% - 5,74%
Expected Average working life 13-17 12-24
(years)

In case of increase of the average annual payroll by 1%, the amount of liabilities due to termination of
service of Greek companies would increase by 20%. In case of increase of discount rate to the levels
of 2011, (1,72% on average higher) the amount of liabilities due to termination of service would

decrease by 28%.

The expense derived from the compensation to employees due to retirement, that was recorded in the

Statement of Comprehensive Income of the financial year 2012 is analysed as follows:
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GROUP COMPANY
3122012 3122011 322012 32011
Servce Cost 263 244 6 6
Interest Cost 117 104 2 2
Cost reducton/sattiementiermnaton service 125 157 0
Total amount aflocated in Income siatement 505 M8 165 8
Ba'ance of labiity st the beginning 2182 1319 45 i)
Compensation due 10 retirement 505 M3 165 8
Pad smounts 0
Actuanal gains/losses 54 514 18
Baance of labity In the end 2313 2.18 185 45

18.2 Share based payments

On 24/5/2010 the Board of Directors granted 102.662 Stock Options which are the third of three in the

tranches. The above series matures in three years with the following vesting dates:

Vesting Date

No of Options

31/12/2010 25.665
31/12/2011 25.665
31/12/2012 51.332
Fair Value per Option Right and Vesting Date is defined as below:

Vesting Date Fair Value €
31/12/2010 0,7372
31/12/2011 1,4184
31/12/2012 1,8772
The variables upon which the Fair Value calculation has been performed are as below:

Variable Value
Exercise Price € 6,63
Current Price at the Grant Date € 5,80
Grant Date 24/5/2010
Vesting Period (Months) 6-18-30
Volatility 55%
Dividend Yield 2%
Risk Free Rate 6,91%

Consequently, for the period 1/1 - 31/12/2012, an amount of € 22,0 thousand has been booked under

Operating Expenses.

On 22/11/2010 the Board of Directors resolution invited the holders of the Stock Option Plan to
exercise their Stock Option rights. After the invitation five Stock Option Plan holders exercised their

rights of corresponding 39.402 shares, nominal value 1,00 euro, at price 3,89 euro per share.

On 31/10/2011 participants waived the right to exercise of 111.921 options granted by the Board of
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Directors on 26/8/2008.

During period 1/1 — 31/12/2012, participants waived the right to execute 24.871 options, granted by
the Board of Directors on 23/2/2009 and 24/5/2010. These movements were included in the

statement Movement in Equity.
18.3 Benefit contributions under the private insurance programme

During the year ended December 31, 2012 the amount of defined benefit contributions under the
private insurance programme that was recorded as an expense by the parent Company totalled
€126,3 thousand (2011: € 251,5 thousand) while the respective amount recorded as an expense by
the Group amounted to € 251,4 thousand (2011: € 617,9 thousand).

19. Financial Instruments and Risk Management Policies
19.1 Credit Risk
Exposure to Credit Risk

The Group is subject to credit risk arising from the Segment of Wholesale Trading of Electrical
Equipment and relates to the collection of receivables in accordance with the customers’ credit terms.
The Group implements a strict credit policy which is monitored and evaluated constantly in order to
ensure that each customer’s balance does not exceed the granted credit limit. Furthermore, the
majority of receivables are secured via entering into insurance contracts. More specifically, in the
Segment of Wholesale Trading of Electrical Equipment there are insurance policies of credit insurance
in place, in Greece and in Romania in collaboration with the insurance company “"ATRADIUS CREDIT

INSURANCE N.V” through which customers balances are insured.

The carrying value of the Group’s Trade receivables as presented in the accompanying financial
statements represents the maximum exposure to credit risk (without taking into consideration any

hedging or insurance strategies). The maximum exposure at 31/12/2012 was as follows:

Book Vaiue
2012 2011
€000s
Trade & other recevables 16.838 18.569
Cash 8 cash equivalent 41825 56,254

The maximum exposure to credit risk on trade receivables of the Group (without taking into
consideration any hedging or insurance strategies) at the date of the Statement of Financial Position,

per geographic segment was as follows:
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€000s

Greece

Southeastern Europe Countries

Book Value
2012 2011
16.587 18.394

252 176

The maximum exposure at the date of the Statement of Financial Position, per customer type was:

€000s
Wholesale trade customers

Retail trade customers

19.2 Liquidity Risk

2012

16.838

Book Vaiue

2011

18.534

35

Liquidity risk is retained at low levels by maintaining adequate bank credit lines and significant cash

and cash equivalents which at 31/12/2012 amounted to Euro 41,8 million vs 56,3 million on

31/12/2011. During year 2012, Group succeeded improved credit terms from its main suppliers.

The contractual loan dues including interest payments, excluding the net - off agreements, are as per

paragraph Borrowings (Note 20), while for Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities is less than 12

months (Note 21).
e, 3months 3t 12months 1105 years M“',."“;"S Total
2012
Credn ines 5469 4,000 4 568 0 0 14,037
Short-term loans 6,323 8867 14,923 8,200 0 38313
Long-term loans 0 1,150 7,369 84,140 23,575 116.234
Leasing 0 757 2474 7,912 0 11,142
Total 11.783 14.774 29334 100.282 23575 178.727
201
Credtt lines 16,088 0 9548 0 0 25 636
Short-term loans 0 14577 67,265 0 0 81,841
Long-erm loans 0 0 0 22,000 56 059 78.059
Leasing 0 736 2.282 11,169 0 14,187
Total 16,068 15313 79 095 33169 56 059 199,724
77
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The contractual dues of Trade and Other Receivables are less than 12 months (Note 12 and 13).

19.3 Foreign Exchange Risk
Foreign exchange risk exposure

The Group is subject to foreign exchange risk arising for its transactions in foreign currencies (RON,
USD, TRY, GBP) with suppliers which invoice the Group in currencies other than the local. The Group,

in order to minimize the foreign exchange risk, in certain cases pre - purchases foreign currencies.

The Group has investments in companies overseas, the net assets of which are subject to foreign
exchange risk. This type of foreign exchange risk (translation risk) arises due to the operations in
Romania (RON), Bulgaria (BGN) and Turkey (TRY). Management has kept the foreign exchange risk in

Romania to @ minimum via loans in RON.

As already mentioned, approximately 90% of GENCO Trade Srl (Romania) loans were in local currency
(RON) in an effort to avoid the exchange difference charges resulting from RON devaluating vs. the
Euro. In Bulgaria the local currency is pegged to the Euro (EUR/ BGN = 1.95583) a fact which can not
guarantee that in the case of a worsening situation this conversion ratio will remain constant. In

Turkey, the financing for commercial activity is in local currency, while for investments is in euro.

311272012 Foreign currency in euro

USD GBP CHF SEX RON TRY BGN EUR

| Trade crediors and other
|habdnes 193 RY) 0 532

2658

=

5828

>

31122011 Foreign currency in euro

USD GBP CHF SEX RON TRY BGN EUR

(Trade cradiors and other
abdtes 661 37 0 o

3116

~o
5
L=

=)

Sensitivity Analysis

A Euro revaluation of 10% at December 31, vs the below currencies would have increased (decreased)
the Net Equity and the Operating Results as per the amounts indicated at the below summary. It is

assumed that all other variables (Interest Rates) would remain constant.The analysis was performed
78
Annual Financial Report for the perfod 1/1/2012 to 31/12/2012



FOURLIS

emnmI Ao frarriaewn

in a similar manner for 2012.

Impact in €000s Net Equity Operating Result
Dec 31, 2012

usb 19 19
GBP 39 39
SEK 53 53
TRY 266 266
RON 0 583
TOTAL 377 960
Dec 31, 2011

usb 66 66
GBP 34 34
SEK 43 43
RON 236 312
TOTAL 379 455

A Euro devaluation of 10% at December 31, vs the aforementioned currencies would have an equal
but opposite impact in comparison to the ones presented above, based on the assumption that all

other variables would remain constant.

19.4 Interest Rate Fluctuation Exposure

Profile

The Group is subject to cash flow risk which in the case of possible variable interest rates fluctuation,
may affect positively or negatively the cash inflows or outflows related to the Group’s assets or
liabilities. Despite of the fact that we believe that in an environment of prolonged global slowdown,
the risk of rising interest rates remains low, the group has entered into Interest Rate Swap (IRS)
contracts effectively converting part of the loans from floating to fixed interest rate for a period of 3 to

5 years.

The profile of Group’s loan liabilities at the date of the Statement of Financial Position is analysed in

paragraph Borrowings.
Sensitivity Analysis of fair value for financial instruments with a variable interest rate

A 1% fluctuation of the Group’s borrowing rate at December 31, would have increased (decreased)
the Net Equity and the Operating Results by € 1.799 thousand for year 2012 and 1.918 thousand for
year 2011.

Sensitivity Analysis of fair value for financial instruments with a fixed interest rate
No such Instruments (Assets/Liabilities) valued at fair value exist.
19.5 Fair value of financial instruments

The carrying amounts of the financial instruments of assets and liabilities (i.e. trade and other

receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade and other payables, derivative financial instruments,
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borrowings and finance leases) approximate their fair value.

The fair value of a financial instrument is the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between two market participants at the measurement date.
The fair values of the financial instruments as of 31 December 2012 represent management’s best
estimate. In situations where there is little, if any, market activity for the asset or liability at the
measurement date, the fair value measurement reflects the Group’s own judgments about the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability. Those judgments are

developed by the Group based on the best information available in the circumstances.
The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:
e Level 1: Quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

¢ Level 2: Observable market based inputs or unobservable inputs that are corroborated by market

data;
¢ Level 3: Unobservable inputs that are not corroborated by market data.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial

instruments:

¢ (Cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, trade and other payables accounts: the
carrying amounts approximate their fair value either due to the short maturity of these

instruments or because there is no foreign currency risk exposure.

¢  Borrowings: The carrying amounts approximate their fair value mainly due to the fact that they

bear interest at floating rates and are denominated in local currency.

¢  Derivative financial instruments: The valuation method took into consideration factors such as the
current and the prospective interest rates trend and the duration and falls into level 2 of the fair

value hierarchy.

19.6 Capital Management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure and maintain strong credit
ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support the investment projects and maximizing the
return of invested capital for the shareholders.

The Group monitors its capital management through the use of a gearing ratio - net debt divided by
equity plus net debt - where net debt includes interest bearing loans and borrowings minus cash. The

Group’s strategic objective is to maintain the above ratio between 30% and 45%.

20. Borrowings

Borrowings are analyzed as follows:
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GROUP
3112/2012 311272011

Non - current loans 127.094 132.732
Finance Leases 11.142 14,187
Total long term loans and short term portion of long term loans 138237 146.919

Current portion of non-current loans and borrowings 11179 54673

Short-term portion of non-current Lease 3231 3.018
Non - current loans 123 827 89 228
Short 1erm loans for working capital 41491 52.805
Total loans and borrowings 176,727 198.724
The maturity table of the Finance Lease Liability is as follows:

GROP
amn )
Uptotyewr  2-Sysas  MomtanSpess  Tod  Uptolyer  2-Syces MomtranSyes  To

Futue Lezss Payments 4% & 348 19082 e 1% 0 1’1z
a5 |ermst H 0 J) 0
Prsst Vo f Pt Lo Paymars 155 1118 248 I IR 0 W

The repayment period of non - current loans varies between 3 to 7 years and the average effective

interest rate of the Group was 5,0% during 2012 (2011: 5,2%). The non - current loans cover mainly

the Group’s growth needs and are analyzed in bond, non - current loans and short term portion of

long term loans as follows:

Issuin
Amount S Duration
Date
FOURLIS TRADE SA Bond 6.000 | 14/12/2009 | >Y&ars from the issuing date (€1.000
payable forthcoming period)
6.000
H.M. HOUSEMARKET . 6 years from the issuing date (€600
(CYPRUS) LTD Bilateral 4.180 | 17/8/2011 payable forthcoming period)
4.180
3 years from the issuing date (€1.600
TRADE LOGISTICS SA Bond 9.800 | 29/2/2012 | | “hje forthcoming period)
Bond 9.000 | 4/11/2009 | 6 years from the issuing date
18.800
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Issuing
Amount Duration
Date
RENTIS SA | Bond 8.000 | 20/1/2010 | 5 years from the issuing date
8.000
HOUSE MARKET BULGARIA AD |  Syndicated 54.614 | 22/12/2011 | 7 Y&ars from the issuing date (€2.900
payable forthcoming period)
54.614
INTERSPORT S.A. Bond 15.000 | 20/12/2012 | 3 years from the issuing date (€2.000
payable forthcoming period)
15.000
HOUSEMARKET SA Bond 20.500 | 21/2/2011 | 3 Years from the issuing date (€3.000
payable forthcoming period)
20.500
Total | 127.094

The current loans include the rest of lease liability of HOUSEMARKET S.A. which, from 27 December
2000, has been funded to aquire the land, the building and its configuration and the equipment of the
first IKEA Store in Greece, in Pylea Thessaloniki. The original lease of the land and building

improvements expired in December 2011 and was renewed for three (3) more years.

Total current loans of the group mainly relate to overdraft bank accounts which are used as for the
Group’s working capital needs. The amounts drawn are used mainly to cover current obligations to
suppliers. The weighted average interest rate of short term loans was approximately 6,8% for the
financial year 2012 (2011: 6,5%). Currently subsidiaries entered into cash flow hedges (Interest Rate
Swaps or IRSs), in order to mitigate the risk of a sudden increase in interest rates in the interbank
market. The terms of the swap agreements are as follows: A 5Syear financial product (IRS) that hedges
interest rate risk through the exchange of fixed/ floating rate for an amount of 15 million euros of
negative fair value for TRADE LOGISTICS SA on 31/12/2012 of € 792 thousand.

Current loans include an amount of € 12 million of RENTIS S.A for which, in 2013 and until the date of
approval of the Financial Statements, the company signed an amendment to the agreement to extent

the payment terms, the amount will be included in non — current loans from the next reporting period.

Some of Group’s loans include loan covenants. On 31/12/2012 Group either complied with the terms

of the loans or had the approval to wave the right to calculate them.

The Group, having centralized its capital management, has the ability to directly identify, quantify,
manage and hedge, if necessary, its financial risks created by its operational activities so as to be
consistent to the changes in the ecomonic environment. The Group continuously observes and
budgets its cash flow and acts appropriately in order to ensure open credit lines for covering current

capital needs.

21. Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are analyzed as follows:
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GROUP COMPANY
31122012 31122011 31122012 3122011
Trade payables 76,358 67441 535 465
Accrued expenses 5555 7.306 222 96
Other payables 2484 7.908 457 477
Taxes liability 4532 5454 166 149
Customers advances 1.7113 229) 0 0
Insurance Organizations 2.602 288 104 9
Total 93,244 91.178 1.482 1.228

The variation of Trade payables is due to changes in credit terms of suppliers of segment of retail

trading of home furniture and household goods.

22. Income taxes

The nominal tax rates in the countries that the Group is operating vary between 10% to 20% as

follows:

Country Income Tax Rates
Greece 20%
Romania 16%
Bulgaria 10%

Cyprus 10%
Turkey 20%

Under the new tax law L. 4110/ 23.1.2013 the tax rate, of entities located in Greece, increases from
20% to 26% for fiscal years on or after January 1, 2013. According to IAS 12 (par. 47) and to IAS 10
(par.22) the change of tax rate held on the beginning of 2013 is a “non-adjusting event” and as result
income and deferred tax of the parent and subsidiaries companies in Greece was calculated with the

tax rate 20%.

The parent company and its subsidiaries have not been audited by the tax authorities for the years

noted below:

COMPANY YEARS
FOURLIS HOLDINGS SA 2010-2012(*)
FOURLIS TRADE SA 2009 — 2012(*)
INTERSPORT ATHLETICS SA 2008 — 2012(*)
SERVICE ONE SA 2010-2012(*)
GENCO TRADE SRL 2007 — 2012
GENCO BULGARIA EOOD 2009 — 2012
TRADE LOGISTICS SA 2010-2012(*)
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HOUSEMARKET SA

HM HOUSEMARKET (CYPRUS) LTD
HOUSE MARKET BULGARIA AD

RENTIS SA

INTERSPORT ATHLETICS (CYPRUS) LTD

WYLDES LTD

INTERSPORT ATLETIK MAGAZACILIK VE DIS TiCARET A.S.

Assosiate companies have not been audited by the tax authorities for the years noted below:

COMPANY

VYNER LTD
SPEEDEX SA

2007 — 2012(*)
2006 — 2012
2008 — 2012
2010-2012(*)
2006 — 2012
2009 — 2012

2012

YEARS

2009 — 2012
2007 — 2012(*)

(*)For the periods 1/1 — 31/12/2011 and 1/1 — 31/12/2012 all companies of the Group located in

Greece, have been subjected to tax audit by Certified Audit Accountants in accordance with the

provisions of Article 82 par. 5 of Law 2238/1994 and received a Tax Compliance Certificate. In order to

consider that the fiscal years 2011 and 2012 is audited by the tax authorities, all the defined

mentioned in paragraph 1a of Article 6 L. 1159/2011 should be applied.

The income tax expense for the year 2012 and the relative year 2011 is as follows:

Income tax
Tex audit differences

Deferred Taxes:

Differences of fixed assets

Provisions for employee banefits

Finance leases
Provisions
Accrued Taxes

Inventory Wrte Off Provision

Total Deferred taxes

Income Tax Exponse

The reconciliation between the nominal tax rate and the effective tax rate is analyzed as follows:

GROUP COMPANY
2002 2011 2012 2011
1.206 1.767 0 0
0 903 0 125
552 1.227 3 3
44 [
178 0 0
0 32
000 nag 14
¢ 170 0 0
(1.464) (310) (88) (40)
258) 2.381 (88) 85
84
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GROUP COMPANY
20012 201 2012 20
Profit before taxes (11.700) 4077 B47) (468)
Income tax based on nominal tax rate (154 2306 (169 (124
Tex on tax free ncome (88) 56 0
Tax on non deductible expenses 511 792 50 50
Addtiona tax on real estate rents 28 0 0 0
Tax on tax losses (155 684 0 0
Tax audit differences 0 203 0 125
Non operating incomse tax 105 49 0 0
Proportionate tax on unrealzed profits 0 0 0
Finance leases 0 440 0 0
Miscellaneous timing differences 823 476 34
Tax In statement of comprehensive Income (258) 2.361 (88) 85

Deferred taxes result from temporary differences between tax assets and liabilities recognition at the
date of the Financial Statements.

For companies of FOURLIS Group which are located in Greece, if the deferred tax on 31/12/2012
calculation was based on the new tax rate, Deferred Taxes Assets would have increased by the
amount of € 51 thousand for FOURLIS HOLDINGS S.A. and by the amount of € 754 thousand for the

Greek subsidiaries in the financial statements of December 31, 2012.

On 31/12/2012 the Group had cumulative transferred tax losses and took a provision on part of them
in Deferred tax Asset which amounted to euro 5.586 thousand, as management recognition criteria
have been fulfilled.

Deferred taxes as at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011 in the accompanying Statement of

financial positions are analyzed as below:
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GROUP COMPANY
322012 3122011 311272012 31122011

Linbilives:

Deprecation Difference 1,958 287) ] Q
Empioyee retirement benefits (301) (292) 0 0
Income tax o4) 8] 0 0
Expenses Provision (9 (6 0 0
Bad dept Provision (v} 0 0 Q
Finance leases 0 1.833 0 0
Reclass of Revenue account 159 388 0 0
Impairmeant on asset 0 0 0 0
Impairment on reserves (60) Q 0 0
Provison Other Expenses (102) (104) 0 0
Total 1421 1.632 0 0
Assets:

Depreciation calc, difference o958 1175 (11) (3)
Employee retirement benefits 170 141 37 9
Stock develuation 20 24 0 0
Provisions 539 662 7 12
Provision for doubtful debts 789 860 0 0
Finance leases 240 0 0 0
Reclass of Revenue account 0 0 0 0
Deferrad income tax 5586 4217 137 74
Devaluavon of assets O Q 0 4]
Total 8,302 7.079 170 B7

Taking into consideration that some of the Group companies have not been audited by the tax

authorities for a few years, it is considered by the Group that adequate provisions for future tax audit
differences have been made. During current reporting period, the cumulative Group’s provision for
unaudited tax years amounted to € 1.785 thousand and to € 20 thousand for the Company as at
31/12/2012 which is displayed in Income Tax Payable.

23. Earnings per share
The basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to shareholders by the

weighted average number of shares during the period. The weighted average number of shares as at
31 December 2012 was 50.478.240 shares.
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GROUP
31122012 311272011

) ¢
(Loss)/Proft after tax asttributable 10 owners of the parent ') 2.297

Number of issued shares 50.992.322 50.992.322
SOP Impect 146,993 306.662
Purchases / (sales) of own shares

Waeighted average number of shares 50.623.233 91785
Basic (Losses YEarnings per Share (in Euro) 29 0,043
Diluted (Losses /Earnings per Share (in Euro) ” b i

24. Share Buy - Back

The Board of Directors, with their decision dated 24/8/2010, proceeded to implement the decision of
the General Assembly of Shareholders of 11 June 2010 on the purchase of treasury shares. In the
context of these decisions, the Company during the period from 24/8/2010 to 11/6/2012 purchased
541.948 treasury shares with a total acquisition value of euros 2.083.394,76 and average price euros
3,8443. On 11/6/2012 the above share buyback project was completed. Specifically the company
during the period from 1/1/2012 until 11/6/2012 bought 83.099 shares with total value of euros
84.979,17.

The Annual General Assembly of Shareholders of the parent company “"FOURLIS Holdings SA” held on
15/6/2012 approved a share buyback program of up to 5% of the issued share capital or 2.549.616
shares. The Share Buy Back will take place within (24) twenty four months from the Annual General
Assembly approval, until 15/6/2014. The lowest purchase price will be fifty cents euro (0,50 €) per
share and maximum fifteen euro (15,00 €) per share. Under this decision, the company during the
period from 15/6/2012 until 31/12/2012 did not buyback any shares.

On 25/2/2013 Company owns 541.948 treasury shares (1,06% of total shares, total value of euro
2.083.394,76).

25. Commitments and Contingencies
25.1 Commitments

The Group’s commitments for the year 2012 are analysed as follows:
e The company has issued letters of guarantee for the associate company for loans and
participation in tenders amounting to € 9.507 thousand.

¢  The company has issued letters of guarantee for its subsidiaries guaranteeing liabilities amounting
to € 115.878 thousand.

e  Subsidiary companies have issued letters of guarantee for its subsidiaries guaranteeing liabilities
amounting to € 50.330 thousand.
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A subsidiary company mortgage its property to secure a bond loan amounting to € 25.200
thousand.
e A subsidiary company mortgage its property to secure a bond loan amounting to € 55.175

thousand.

e A subsidiary company mortgage its property to secure a bond loan amounting to € 25.000

thousand.

e A subsidiary company mortgage its property to guarantee liabilities of a subsidiary amounting to €
15.000 thousand.

25.2 Operating Lease
Group as Lessee

The Group has leasing contracts for plant and equipment in order to cover its operating needs. This is
accomplished through finance and operating leasing contracts. Concerning the finance leasing

contracts see above in paragraph “Borrowings”.

Concerning operating leasing contracts, the total future dues for rents as below:

GROUP COMPANY
311272012 311272011 311272012 311272011
Upto 1 year 18.162 19.464 227 120
Between 1-5 years 75404 B2.746 329 451
More then 5 years 209.331 258285 72 276
Total 302.987 400495 628 847

The expense for operating leasing of financial year 2012, that was recorded in the statement of

comprehensive income amounted to € 21.815 thousand (€ 20.532 thousand for year 2011).

Group as Lessor

The future leasing contracts of RENTIS SA subsidiary of the Group as a lessor amounts to € 324
thousand until 1 year, € 3.242 thousand for 2 - 5 years, and 3.486 thousand for 5 years and up.

25.3 Litigation

During 2012 the Competition Committee of Romania requested for a preliminary investigation
regarding trading practices that were followed during previous years by companies that trade electrical
equipment including indirectly the subsidiary of the Group in Romania. At the present, it is not possible
to predict the final result of the investigation or to quantify the possibility or the importance of any
possible liability that may result from the above mentioned investigation. According to the
Management any possible liability of the Group, that may result from this case, will not have

significant impact on Comprehensive Income, Cash Flows or Financial Position of the Group.
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There are no litigation or arbitration proceedings that might have a material impact on the Group’s

Financial Statements.

26. Related parties

Related parties of the Group include the Company, subsidiary and associated companies, the
management and the first line managers. The parent company provides advice and services to its
subsidiaries. In 2012 was held the centralization of support services for the Group Companies in

Greece (in the areas of IT, HR, financial planning and controlling, treasury and social responsibility).

The analysis of the related party receivables and payables as at 31 December 2012 and 2011 are as

follows:
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Rocolvaties fram - FOURLIS THADE SA 0 0 2
PRIME TELECOM SA 0 0 0 0
HOUSE MARKET A 0 0 w78 2
INTEREPONT SA 0 o 27 e
SERVICE ONE 54 0 0 e z
THADE LOGISTICS SA (FIF) 0 0 o 1
GENCO BULGARIA (RSG) 0 0 2 9
INTERSPORT (CYPRUS) LTD 0 0 “ 3
MM HOUSE MARKET (OYPRUS) LTD 0 0 * “
SPEEDEX SA 1 0 0 0
RENTIS 5A 0 0 ' 0
HOUSE MARKET BULGARIA AD 0 0 0 »“
BHTA TRITH 0 0 o 0
WYLDES o 0 0 1
INTERBPORT ATLETH 0 0 e W
VYNER 0 0 0 o
ATC 0 0 0 0
GENCO TRADE SHL 0 0 &7 28
Toumt ! 0 ) ol
Paysbleste:  FOUNLIS TRADE SA 0 0 - 1
PRME TELECOM 5A 0 o o 0
HOUSE MARKET SA o o 72 Tha
INTERSPORT 8A 0 0 L a7
SERVICE ONE SA o 0 L] 2
TRADE LOGISTICS SA (HHF) 0 0 " 10
GENCO BULGARIA (HSG) o 0 o 0
INTERSPORT (CYPRUS) LTD o 0 3 3
HM_ HOUSE MARKET (CYPRUS) LTD o o 2 b
SPEEDEX SA 1" 7% ' 0
HENTIS SA 0 o 0 o
HOUSE MARKET BULGARIA AD 0 ° 2 2
BHTA TPITH o 0 o 0
WYLDES o 4] 0 ]
INTERSPORT ATLETK 0 o 14 0
VYNER 0 0 0 0
ATC o 0 0 0
GENCO TRADE SHL. o 0 3 3
et 1] 2 L 210

Related party transactions as at 31 December 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

Revenues

Other operating income

Total 1 0 3.674 1.217
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GROUP COMPANY
2012 2011 2012 2011
Administrative expenses 94 Nn 7 0
Distribution expenses 146 58 0 0
Other operating expenses 0 0 0 0
Total 240 89 7 0

During 2012 and 2011, transactions and fees of management members were as follows:

Transactions and fees of management 2.938 3150 428 554
members

There are no other transactions between the Group or the Entity with the management. The

transactions with related parties are arm’s length.

27. Transactions with Subsidiaries

During financial year 2012 between the parent company and its subsidiaries the following transactions

occurred:
GROUP COMPANY
2012 2011 2012 2011

Revenue 18.138 233265 3250 790
Cost of Sales 13.389 15.156 2490 2G4
Other iIncome 1.885 1473 424 427
Administative expenses 3.638 6.3 52 E]
Distribution expenses 2.962 3.000 0 0
Dividends 0 o 0 0

GROUP COMPANY

31122012 31122011 31122012 311272011

Trade recevables 11,472 10,304 1.536 mm
Inventory 343 515 0 0
Creditors 10.552 9.024 417 422

The Group has issued letters of guarantee for its subsidiary and associated companies guaranteeing
liabilities. The analysis of such letters of guarantee is disclosed in which appears in Note Commitments
and Contingencies.

Figures of the period 1/1 — 31/12/2011 has been reclassified to make them comparable with the
figures of the corresponding period of 2012 (Note 29).

28. Allocation of assets aquisition price

On 20 July 2011, the subsidiary INTERSPORT ATLETIK MAGAZACILIK VE DIS TICARET AS. a
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subsidiary of INTERSPORT ATHLETICS AE, acquired certain assets from the company SPORTING
GUNGOR MAGAZACILIK VE DIS TICARET A.S., which was the Master Franchisee of INTERSPORT
INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION (IIC) in Turkey until then.

The total acquisition cost paid was € 7,3 million (TRY 17,2 million) and the following assets were

acquired:

o the exclusive franchise of the trade nhame INTERSPORT in Turkey (Master Franchise Agreement) of
value € 4,1 million (TRY 9,5 million),

e assets of value € 1,3 million (TRY 3,1 million), inventories of value € 1,9 million (TRY 4,6 million),
as well as leasing contracts for 10 specific stores of SPORTING GUNGOR MAGAZACILIK VE DIS
TICARET A.S network in Turkey and the relative human resources,

e a contract with a representative in Turkey.

The total acquisition cost was finally allocated to the above tangible and intangible assets that were

acquired and no goodwill was calculated for this transaction.

During the first semester of 2012 the process of allocating the acquisition cost was completed by the
Group without any differentiation in the amounts that were temporarily recognized during the previous

year.

29. Reclassifications and discontinued operations

In 2012, the Company due to the centralization of support services of the Group companies in Greece
presents in the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the period 1/1 - 31/12/2012 income from
services, service cost and gross profit. For comparability reasons and presentation uniformity,
reclassifications have been made to the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the period 1/1 -
31/12/2011.

On 31/12/2010 the termination of the collaboration with SAMSUNG Electronics was completed and
therefore discontinued operations are presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the
period 1/1 - 31/12/2011. There are no discontinued operations in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income for the period 1/1 - 31/12/2012.

30. Significant Additions in Consolidated Data

The most significant additions, that appear in the Statement of Financial Position on 31/12/2012 in
comparison with the corresponding data of 31/12/2011 and of the Statement of Comprehensive
Income of the period 1/1 — 31/12/2012 in comparison with the period 1/1 — 31/12/2011, are the

following:

e Increase in the amount of “Investments in affiliates and associates” resulted from the

implementation of the investment program of an associate of the Group.
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e  Decrease in the amount of “Inventory” resulted from the improvement of inventory turnover.

e Decrease in the amount of “Income Tax Receivable” resulted from the offset of current taxes paid

in advance.

e Decrease in the amount of “Investment Property” resulted from impairment of their value due to

a valuation.

o Increase of “Accounts payable and other current liabilities” resulted from the improvement of

credit terms of the suppliers of the Group.

31. Subsequent events

Current loans include an amount of € 12 million of RENTIS S.A for which, in 2013 and until the date of
approval of the Financial Statements, the company signed an amendment to the agreement to extent

the payment terms, the amount will be included in non — current loans from the next reporting period.

Under the new tax law L. 4110/ 23.1.2013 the tax rate, of entities located in Greece, increases from
20% to 26% for fiscal years on or after January 1, 2013. For companies of FOURLIS Group which are
located in Greece, if the deferred tax on 31/12/2012 calculation was based on the new tax rate,
Deferred Taxes Assets would have increased by the amount of € 51 thousand for FOURLIS HOLDINGS
S.A. and by the amount of € 754 thousand for the Greek subsidiaries in the financial statements of
December 31, 2012.

There are no other significant events following the date of 31/12/2012 that may affect the financial

position of the Group and the Company.
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Financial Data and Information

FOURLIS
FOURLIS HOLDINGS S.A.
Societes Anonymes Register Number 13110/06/B/86/01
340, Kifissias Ave -154 51 Neo Psychiko, Athens, Greece
General Electronic Commercial Registry 258101000
Financial data and information from 1 January 2012 until 31 December 2012
According to Law 2190/20 art.135 for Companies publishing their Annual Consolidated and Non Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with International Accounting Standards
T uts presen e i enerat fornain st he Tl peitn nd sus o FOURLISHOLDINGS S (ne ompary and e FOURLIS GROUP (e Groue Therfrswe e e edr o ends o possed o any vesia o any
the company 1o visit the  separate Financial Statements prepared according to IFRS as adopted by European Urion.
SapervTg AdtoTy Winisiry of Development Board of Direciors
WetlteGompany s vav fourlis.ar Chairman - Execuive Member Vassiios Fourls
ol Aoprove o Fnancial Statements rom 80D 25, February 20: Vise President - Executive Member Datni Fourls
Cartited nudton Soia Kalomenidou. AM. SOEL 13301 CEO - Exective Member Apostolos Petalas
Audit Firm Erst & Young (HELLAS) Certfied Auditors Accountants SA Exccutive Member Lyda Fouts
Type of Audit Report Unqualified Executive Member loanis Lioupis
Non Executive Member loannis Brembos
Non Executive Independent Member Eftchios Vassilakis
Non Executive Independent Member - loannis Papaioannou
Non Executive Independent Member - loannis Kosiopoulos.
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (amounts in thousand €)
(Consolidated & Separate) amounts i thousand €
COMPANY GrouP
11212012 3122011 31202012 w2011 Total Continuing ~ Discontinued  Total
AssETS Gperations operations
Non- curent aseets 113122012 UIBUI22001  VLBUI22011 11811122011
Property plant and equipment 29472 204556 & B
imsimentPpery 7600 8782 o 0 | Revenue 20254 436033 2216 asmae0
Intangivle Assets 15357 16135 9 114 | Costof Goods Sold 260541 263410 262 26606
Investments i afiaes and associates 21288 13728 97203 95,193 | Gross Profit (Lose) 15713 172823 4% 12187
investments o o o 95| Other operating income 1095 3616 2888 685
Long Term receivabies 6316 6667 139 138 | Distrbuton expenses 140382 130574 253 w2
Delerted Taxes 5302 7078 170 87 | Administaiive expenses 25,052 29549 a2 084
ota] 00 - curant assts — < S—5 E Ot operating expenses 2588 1894 134 2028
Current assuts ‘Operating Proft (Loss) 2786 14223 ™ e
Inventories 76767 w8573 o 0 | Finance costs 17,102 12069 s 1
Income tax receivabie 7.361 0,358 3075 3650 | Finance income 3025 152 1.761 3288
Trade recaivables 16838 18569 1560 815 | Expense income from associate companies 410 255 o 255
Other receivaties 20754 21145 61 534 | Protv (Loss) Before Tex 1700 3425 [ 4017
Cash & cash equivalent 41825 56291 2328 4916 [ income tax 258 1937 424 2361
Total cumantassets 183648 193620 7425 9915 | Netincom/ Loss (A) k2 1488 29 171
TOTAL ASSETS £ — 1 T T RN | Ambumblen:
Parent company 1253 2008 29 2207
oklers Equty Non - conrllng inerest 189 581 o 561
Shere Capial 50992 50992 50992 50992 | Notincomal Loso (8) 11442 1487 = 1718
Share premium reserve T 1837 12322 12322
Reserves 35504 33311 28903 29276 | Other comprehensive Incomelexpennes
Retined eamings 78519 91658 1168 11597 | Foreign curency traniaton rom foreign operations 120 145 2 157
Totalshareholders squiy (3) TRES TS T TOLTBT | Actuais eins/ losses) ondafinec bensfit pension plan afer tax 7 522 o 22
Non - coniroling interest () — il — T | Efiecive porion of changes i foi value of cash flow hedges 20 375 o 375
Totel Equiy (<)) T TRm® T Tere® T35 TOATE | omprobenale incomelloes shor Tax B 33 291 a2 S04
LIABLITIES Tl Comprarashe rcamel s e 07 E) 70 7% 7 R
ront Liebites At
Loans and borrowings 123827 80228 o 0 [ perent com 10920 1776 217 1983
Enplge et bt 2373 2181 185 45| Non-contolingmerest 189 581 o 581
Deferred T 1421 632 o 0| Bosic Earnings/ (Losses) per Share (in Euro) 02229 00408 00045 00453
O non- curent laitios 6265 6649 121 121 | Diuted Eamings/ (Losses) pe Share (in Euro) 02223 00405 00045 00450
otal non - curman Lisbitos — — 2, 2215 T 2798
Gurrent Lisbiftoa -
Short-term loans for working capital arao 52805 o o COMPANY
Curent poton of non - curant loans and borrowings. 1179 54673 o o 13122012 1311202011
Short - e porton of non - current Lease 3231 3018 o o
Income Tax Payable 2054 2031 2 20
Accounts payable and other curent abiites 95244 91.178 1482 1228 enve 3250 790
Totalcurront Lisbiios A v —. Costof Goods Sold 2490 404
Totat Lisbes (&) ross Profit 760 206
TOTAL EQUITY & LABILITITES (&) + () Other operating income 459 a68
Distibuton expenses 0 o
Administaive expensas. 2,080 1369
TATEMENT OF CHANGES TN EQUITY Other operating expenses 14 22
(Consolidated and Separate) amounts in thousand € Operating Loss 874 627
GROUP Finance costs 3 P
11202012 su12011 au12i012 au12i011 Finance Income 0 162
Exponselincoma from assocate companies o o
Balance at the beginning of period (1112012 and 11112011 respectively) 187680 Js8ar2 104187 105737 | Proftioss Before Tex 847 469
Total comprehensive incomel loss for he period afer taxes 1109 1412 739 569 | Income tax [ -85
Dividends o equity holders o o o o | NetIncometoss (A) 750 554
Ot 18 2145 3 081 | Amtanablew:
Balancs etthe end of perlod (31/12/2012 and 3111212011 respectivaly) 176.889 187.680 103385 104:187 | Equity holders of the parent 759 554
on - contoling interest 0 o
750 554
GASH FLOW STATEMENT
(Consolidated and Separate) amounts in thousand € Income
Actuaralgains! (osses) on defined benefi pension plan aftr tax 20 14
GROUP. comPANY ® 20 14
32202 w-nnzeon W1 11-3wn2zon .
Operating Actvites Artuable
Not praft/oes betore faxms (Cortinuing Oparatians) 11700 3424 47 469 | Equity holders o the parent 7308 569
Net profk before axee (Discontinusd Opecations) 3 653 o 0| Non- conroling nterest 0 o
Adjustments for Proposed Dividend per Share (i Euro) 00000 56000
Eamings/(osses) betors Inkerest, Texes,
Deprecietion 17,300 12992 s 41 | Amortiation & Deprocietion 28 58
Provisions 25 613 1 a1
Foreign exchange diferences 256 a7 El 123 | Adaitional Data and information
Resuls (income, expenses, proft and lss) from investment aciviy 75 18 2 35 | 1. Theb: les applied with those applied for the Annual Financial Statements of 31/12/2011
Interst Expense 15044 10824 3 3 | 2. Prior year's comparative information have been reclassified to be comparable with the figures of corresponding period
Pt loss 30 forchanges i warkig capitalrested 1o X
the operating ectviee: of 2012 due to the centralization of the Group support services.
Decreasel (increase) ninventory 17 3156 o 0| 3. There are no reasons of separate presentation of discontinued operations in the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the period 2012
Decreasel increase) in trade and ot receivables 5555 12665 75 116 | 4. The type of Independent Auditors Report on the audited Annual Financial Information s unqualified.
(Decreaso)/increase nlisbilis (exciucing barks) 850 5431 a1 315 | 5. A subsidiary company mortgaged its property to secure liabilities of a subsidiary company amounting to € 15.000 thousand. Subsidiary companies mortgage
Less: their property to secure bond _loans amounting to € 105,375 thousand.
Interest pad st 2 0| 6. There are no litigations, which have an important impact on the financial position of Fourlis Group and the Company.
Income taxes paid E 4807 o 52| 7. The total headcount for Group and Company is as follows: Group 3.531 on 31/12/2012 (2011: 3.512), Company 58 on 31/12/2012 (20113).
Operating nflow! (outlow) fom discontinued operatons o 38630 o 9 | &. Subsidiary Companies, their location, Fourlis Holdings share participation along with the method of consolidation in the Annual Financial Statements of 2012 are
=20 5047 w2 =% | detailed in Note 1 of the Annual Financial Statements,
Invesiing Actviles 9. The Non Audited Fiscal years for the Group Companies are listed under Note 22 of the Annual Financial Statements. The accumulated provisions related to the
7950 4550 1904 21795 unaudited tax years amount to € 1.785 thousand for the Group and to € 20 thousand for the Compan
Purchase of tangible and ntangible fxed assets 0975 73250 -4 <39 | 10. Earmings per share have been calculated on me weighted average number of shres outstanding at he reporting ate.
Proceeds from disposal of tangible and inangible assels 207 5 o 20 | 11. The BoD resolution of p o the of e General Assemmy of shareholders dated June 11 2010 on the share buyback.
Interest Received a2 1145 2 158 According to these resolutions, the Company rmm 24182010 10 11/6/2012 purchased 541.948 treasury shares of a total value € 2.083.394,76. On 11/6/2012 the above
Proceeds from dividends o o o o share buyback project was completed. The Annual General Assembly of Sharcholders of the p.m;nl company “FOURLIS Holdings SA” held on 15/6/2012 approved a
Proceeds from sal ofsubsidaris and associates o o o o share buyback program of up to 5% of the issued share capital or 2.549.616 shares. The Share Buy Back will take place within (24) twenty four months from the
Proceeds fom retur of capital of subsidaries elated ventures o 0 o 15033 | Annual General Assembly approval, until 15/6/2014. The lowest purchase price will be fifty cents euro (0,50 €) per share and maximun fifteen euro (15.00 €) per share.
Purchase of ther nvestments o o o o | on31/12/2012 Company owns 541.948 treasury shares (1,06% of total shares, total value of euro 2.083.394,76)
Investing inflow (outlow) from discontinued operatins 0 L o 0 | 12. The Shareholders General Assembly dated on 15/6/2012 did not propose a dividend distribution for the year 1/1 ~ 31/12/2011 taking into account the financial results
Total nfow (outhow) o iovesting actiies 3) s R 2010 R of this period.
Financing Aciiiles 13. The transactions (1/1 - 31/1212012) and the balances with the related parties (under IAS 24) at the reporting date are presented below:
Paymen for purchase own shares w54 a0 a5 1140
Inflow rom share capitl increase o 13
o 0 o o 31202012
Outtowfrom share capta increase 0 0 o o ROUP comPANY
Proceeds flom ssued oans 8705 105334 o 0 | nfows 3674
Repayment of oans 65364 35379 o o | outiows 200 7
poman s rglasites 3045 3088 o 0 | Receivables 1 1539
Dividends o o o 0 | Liabiles 418
o — o 26533 o 0 | Transaction and fees of Management members 2038 a2
m/mwm»mmm-w 078 % K
(decreese) In cesh and cash equivalents ——
v period (-»m»( 440 18131 2587 8163
(Cash and cash equivalents a the beginning o the period EE B2 a5 75079 | There are no ather ransactons, receivables-payables between the company and the Group and members BoD and Key Managers
ffect o exchange ate fuctuations on cash a B o o
Closing balencs, cesh and cash equvalents
/€0 Psychiko, February 25, 2013
“The Chairman of the BoD The CEO The Finance Manager The Chief Accountant
Vassiis Sil. Fourlis Apostolos D. Petalas Maria |. Theodoulidou Sotrios . Mitrou
D No. 700173 D No AK-021139 1D No. T-134715 1D No. AI-557890
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Information pursuant to article 10 of Law 3401/ 2005

Date - Time

02/02/2012 10:39
02/02/2012 10:55
02/02/2012 12:32
13/02/2012 12:27
28/02/2012 16:54
29/02/2012 15:11
04/05/2012 10:55
07/05/2012 17:48
09/05/2012 09:37
10/05/2012 11:02
11/05/2012 11:57
14/05/2012 10:17
15/05/2012 09:56
16/05/2012 10:36
17/05/2012 10:25
18/05/2012 09:58
18/05/2012 10:08
21/05/2012 11:02
22/05/2012 09:53
23/05/2012 10:47
23/05/2012 19:38
29/05/2012 17:04
11/06/2012 09:58
15/06/2012 15:03
15/06/2012 15:20
18/06/2012 09:57
28/08/2012 17:15
05/09/2012 12:55
08/11/2012 12:05
27/11/2012 17:06
10/12/2012 17:52

Subject

Publication schedule FY11 financial results
Financial Calendar 2012

Financial Calendar 2012

Announcement based on law 3556/2007
Consolidated Financials FY11 (IFRS)
Analysts' Briefing

Publication date of Q1FY12 financial results
Share buy-back announcement

Share buy-back announcement

Share buy-back announcement

Share buy-back announcement

Share buy-back announcement

Share buy-back announcement

Share buy-back announcement

Share buy-back announcement

Share buy-back announcement
INVITATION TO THE ANNUAL ORDINARY GENERAL MEETING OF THE SHAREHOLDERS
Share buy-back announcement

Share buy-back announcement

Share buy-back announcement

Share buy-back announcement
Consolidated Financials Q1FY12 (IFRS)
Share buy-back announcement

Resolution of the Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of the company, held on 15.6.2012
Share buy back program

Resolution of the Annual General Meeting held on 15.6.2012 (Amendment)
Consolidated Financials H1FY12 (IFRS)

Tax Certificate for the financial year 2011
Publication date of Q3FY12 financial results
Consolidated Financials Q3FY12 (IFRS)
Announcement according to law 3556/2007
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The Annual Financial Report of the Group, The Independent Auditors Report and the Board of

Directors Report for the year 2012 has been published by posting on the Internet at the web address
www.fourlis.gr.
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